
 

Page 1 of 198 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, APRIL 20, 2020 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

 

 
 
To protect against the spread of the COVID-19, the meeting will be held via Videoconference. The public 
may access/participate in the meeting in the following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 998 2410 4044. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,99824104044# or +19292056099,,99824104044# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/99824104044.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://youtu.be/a91dVikDec8  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of April 6, 2020. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Continuation of the public hearing on the proposed vacation and dedication of a storm sewer 
easement on the northeast corner of the property located at 312 West 1st Street. 

a) Staff comments. 

b) Public comments. 

3. Resolution approving and authorizing vacation and dedication of a storm sewer easement on the 
northeast corner of the property located at 312 West 1st Street. 

4. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
Cedar Falls Recreation Center – Locker Rooms Renovation Project. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 10, 2020) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Staff comments. 

d) Public comments. 

5. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the Cedar Falls Recreation Center – Locker Rooms Renovation Project. 

1



 

Page 2 of 198 

6. Public hearing on a proposed ordinance amending the boundaries for wards and precincts within the 
City of Cedar Falls to incorporate recently annexed territory. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 10, 2020) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Staff comments. 

d) Public comments. 

7. Pass an ordinance amending the boundaries for wards and precincts within the City of Cedar Falls to 
incorporate recently annexed territory, upon its first consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

8. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Chris Martin, Board of Rental Housing Appeals, term ending 05/01/2024.  
b) Cindy Wiles, Board of Rental Housing Appeals, term ending 05/01/2024. 

9. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a certified list for the 
position of Administrative Assistant. 

10. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a certified list for the 
position of Assistant Public Safety Director/Police Chief. 

11. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Hy-Vee Clubroom, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
b) The Horny Toad American Bar & Grille, 204 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) ZSAVOOZ, 206 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
e) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

12. Resolution authorizing the redemption of outstanding General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 
2009A, of the City of Cedar Falls, dated December 23, 2009, and directing notice be given. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Second Amendment to Loan Agreement with 
Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a contract with Laser Line Striping relative to 2020 
pavement marking services. 

15. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Peterson Contractors, 
Inc. for the University Avenue Reconstruction Project - Phase 2. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to the Union Road 
Recreational Trail Project – 12th Street to 27th Street. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. for acquisition services 
relative to the Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project.  

2



 

Page 3 of 198 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to the Island Park Improvements Project. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to Agreement with River Place 
Properties, LC and State Street Mixed Use II, LC relative to conveyance of certain real estate to the 
City, and approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Agreement affecting a Second 
Amendment to Agreement for Private Development with River Place Properties, LC and State Street 
Mixed Use II, LC. 

20. Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay Zoning District site plan for 
temporary wheat paste murals in the College Hill Business District. 

21. Resolution approving a Highway Corridor and Greenbelt (HCG) Overlay Zoning District site plan for 
construction of a financial institution at 126 Brandilynn Boulevard. 

22. Resolution setting May 4, 2020, as the date of public hearing on amendments to the City’s FY2020 
Budget. 

23. Resolution setting May 4, 2020 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from A-1, 
Agricultural, to R-1, Residential and M-1, P, Planned Light Industrial of recently annexed property 
located south of West Viking Road and east of South Union Road, and also on an associated 
amendment to the Future Land Use Map by changing the designation from being undesignated to 
Industrial, Low Density Residential, and Public and Utilities. 

Ordinances: 

24. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to prohibiting loitering, upon its first consideration. 

25. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to noxious weeds, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

26. Allow Bills and Payroll of April 20, 2020. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, APRIL 6, 2020 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. The Mayor opened the meeting from 
City Hall and announced that the meeting was an electronic meeting being 
conducted in conformance with the Governor’s Proclamation of Disaster 
Emergency dated March 19, 2020. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, an in-person 
meeting was impractical. Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah, Sires, Taiber (at 7:06 P.M.). Absent: None. 

 
52740 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of March 16, 2020 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52741 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the 

Special Meeting of March 20, 2020 be approved as presented and ordered of 
record. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52742 - The Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of March 20, 

2020, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed vacation 
and dedication of a storm sewer easement on the northeast corner of the 
property located at 312 West 1st Street. It was then moved by Darrah and 
seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52743 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed vacation and dedication. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Community 
Services Manager Howard spoke briefly about the proposal and requested that 
the hearing be continued to the next Council meeting. It was then moved by 
Harding and seconded by Darrah to continue the hearing to the April 20, 2020 
City Council meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52744 - (Councilmember Taiber now present.)  It was moved by Sires and seconded by 

Harding that the following items and recommendations on the Consent Calendar 
be received, filed and approved: 

 
Receive and file a proclamation recognizing April 19-25, 2020 as Administrative 
Professionals Week and April 22, 2020 as Administrative Professionals Day. 
 
Receive and file the resignation of Brian Wingert as a member of the Planning & 
Zoning Commission. 
 
Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Paul 
Lee to the Civil Service Commission, term ending 04/01/2024. 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of March 16, 2020 relative 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

to the following items: 
a) Cedar Heights Drive Update.  
b) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of February 2020. 
 
Approve the request of The Space 109 for a temporary sign at 109 East 2nd 
Street. 
 
Approve the application of Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 
 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Godfather's Pizza, 1621 West 1st Street, Class B beer - renewal.  
b) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore's Pub), 

5307 Caraway Lane, Class C liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal.  
c) Luxe Nail Bar, 5907 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal.  
d) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 

renewal.  
e) CVS/Pharmacy, 2302 West 1st Street, Class E liquor - renewal.  
f) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E liquor – new. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52745 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,920, approving and adopting a job classification for the position of 
Sales & Marketing Coordinator in the Visitors & Tourism Division. 
 
Resolution #21,921, approving and accepting from the Municipal Electric and 
Gas Utilities the permanent transfers of $3,126,580.00 to the General Fund and 
$30,000.00 to the Economic Development Fund of the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
Resolution #21,922, approving and authorizing execution of a Red House Studio 
Lease relative to the use of 224 West Seerley Boulevard as artist studio space, in 
conjunction with the Hearst Center’s Visiting Artist Program. 
 
Resolution #21,923, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. for the 2020 Street Construction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,924, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Terracon 
Consultants, Inc. to complete an Iowa DNR Tier 2 Report, in conjunction with the 
West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,925, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to the Oak Park Boulevard Sewer Replacement. 
 
Resolution #21,926, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Service Agreement with Robinson Engineering Company relative to the Black 
Hawk & Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment Project. 
 
Resolution #21,927, certifying to the Treasurer of the State of Iowa the actual 
population of territory annexed to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
Resolution #21,928, setting April 20, 2020 as the date of public hearing on a 
proposed ordinance amending the boundaries for wards and precincts within the 
City of Cedar Falls to incorporate recently annexed territory. 
 
Resolution #21,929, setting April 20, 2020 as the date of public hearing on the 
plans, specifications & form of contract for the Cedar Falls Recreation Center - 
Locker Rooms Renovation Project. 
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,920 through #21,929 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52746 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that a resolution endorsing a 

communication from the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors to the 
Governor of Iowa relative to the issuance of a "Safe at Home" order in response 
to the COVID-19 pandemic, be adopted. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Darrah, Sires, deBuhr, Harding, Taiber, Miller and Kruse, 
LeaAnn Saul, 1825 West Greenhill Road, Abdulla Alkhelaifi, 1939 College Street, 
and Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street, and responses by Mayor Green, 
Public Safety Services Director Olson, City Attorney Rogers and Director of the 
Black Hawk County Health Department Doctor Nafissa Cisse-Egbuonye, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: None. Nay: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Motion failed.  

 
52747 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,930, 

approving and authorizing expenditure of funds for the purchase of a water 
tanker/pumper apparatus, be adopted. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Sires, Miller, Taiber and Kruse, and LeaAnn Saul, 1825 West 
Greenhill Road, and responses by Public Works Director Schrage, Public Works 
and Parks Manager Heath and Public Safety Services Director Olson, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,930 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52748 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,931, 

approving and accepting the contract and bond of Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc. 
for the 2020 Permeable Alley Project, be adopted. Following questions and 
comments by Councilmembers Sires, Kruse, Miller and Darrah, and Mayor 
Green, and responses by City Administrator Gaines, Public Works Director 
Schrage and Principal Engineer Fitch, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #21,931 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52749 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the bills and payroll of April 

6, 2020 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
52750 -    Mayor Green responded to Councilmember Darrah’s inquiry about what the City 

can do to encourage citizens to do their part during the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
52751 -    Community Development Director Sheetz responded to Councilmember 

Harding’s questions regarding wireless (5G) small cells. 
     
      Councilmember deBuhr encouraged citizens to complete the Census survey. 
       
52752 - Public Works Director Schrage provided an update on the Downtown 

Streetscapes project. 
 
 Community Development Director Sheetz announced receiving $302,000.00 in 

grant funding for the Lake Street Trail project.  
 
 City Administrator Gaines commented on efforts being taken by the City to 

protect employees and citizens during the COVID-19 pandemic, including 
working on an ‘awareness campaign’ with the City’s Communication Specialist. 

 
 Councilmembers Darrah and Harding commented on city staff providing 

education to citizens about how everyone can do their part during the pandemic.  
 
52753 - Public Safety Services Director Olson and City Attorney Rogers responded to 

questions and comments by Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street, and 
Councilmember Miller regarding Memorandum of Understandings and 28E 
Agreements with surrounding communities. 

 
 City Administrator Gaines responded to questions by LeaAnn Saul, 1825 West 

Greenhill Road, and Councilmember Harding regarding the status of the Police 
Chief position. 

 
52754 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Taiber that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:54 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

7

Item 1.



8

Item 2.



9

Item 2.



10

Item 2.



11

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Inspection Services Division 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green & City Council  
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA 
  Building Official   
 
 DATE: April 16, 2020  
 
 SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Locker Room Remodel at the 
  Recreation Center 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to remodel the locker rooms at the Recreation 
Center.  This is project #63 in the Capital Improvement Plan.  It follows completion of 
the Recreation and Fitness Center, Operations and Facility Needs Assessment in late 
2019.  An overview of the study was given at the November 18, 2019 Committee of the 
Whole meeting. 
 
The City entered into a contract with Invision Architecture to produce plans and 
specifications for a project in FY2021.  With the exception of the carpet all other items in 
the locker rooms are original from 1993 and in need of an update.  The plan is to 
replace all wall and flooring tile, carpet, plumbing fixtures, lighting, hand/hair dryers, 
drop ceiling, heat pumps (located above the ceiling), remove part of the center section 
of lockers swinging the remaining lockers 90°, thus opening up the center of the locker 
room area.  Permanent benches would be replaced with chairs or stools thus becoming 
more user friendly.  The shower area would have three shower stalls with lots of privacy 
as opposed to the four open showers currently in place.   The majority of this work will 
be replacing fixtures and tile which were original when built in 1993.  This update will 
help allow our facility to remain competitive with other locations offering like activities.  
 
Plans have been available since April 9, 2020.  A mandatory pre-bid was held on April 
14, 2020.  Bids are due at 2:00 pm on April 28, 2020. 
 
 
 

12

Item 4.



     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: April 14, 2020 

SUBJECT:      Ward and Precinct Boundary Adjustment – 2020 Cedar Falls Voluntary 
Annexation 

    
 
As you may recall, City Council approved applications for the voluntary annexation of 
territory to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa on August 19, 2019. On February 12, 2020, the 
City Development Board of the State of Iowa issued a Final Order approving the 
annexation application. The 30-day appeal period has now run, and the City 
Development Board has filed the annexation proceedings with both the Iowa Secretary 
of State and the Black Hawk County Recorder. Attached is a map that shows the 
adjusted changes as a result of the annexation. 
 
Due to this change in the corporate limits, the City must now take action to update the 
ward and precinct boundaries to reflect this new area of land that is now within Cedar 
Falls. The land area that was recently annexed is directly adjacent to Ward 2 Precinct 2. 
Therefore, the Ward 2 description will need to be revised, as well as the description for 
Ward 2 Precinct 2, in order to include this new area in those descriptions. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that City Council amend Section 8-1 of the Code of 
Ordinances pertaining to the description of Ward 2 and Ward 2 Precinct 2 in order to 
include the aforementioned annexed land to the city. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Maria Brownell, Ahlers and Cooney, P.C. 
      

13

Item 6.



Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING THE SUBSECTION OF SECTION 8-1, WARDS AND 
PRECINCTS, DEALING WITH THE DESCRIPTION OF THE TERRITORY INCLUDED 
IN THE SECOND WARD OF THE CITY, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW 
SUBSECTION OF SECTION 8-1, WARDS AND PRECINCTS, DEALING WITH THE 
SECOND WARD OF THE CITY, ALL CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 8, ELECTIONS, OF 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  The subsection of Section 8-1, Wards and precincts, dealing with the Second Ward 
of the City, contained in Chapter 8, Elections, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new subsection of Section 8-1, Wards and precincts, 
dealing with the Second Ward of the City, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 

THE SECOND WARD 
 

The Second Ward shall embrace all of the territory within the City Limits described as 
follows: 

 
Beginning at the centerline of Greenhill Road and a north-south leg of the City Limits or the east City 
Limits line; thence southerly along the said east City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; 
thence westerly along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence 
southerly along said north-south City Limits line to the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue; thence 
westerly along the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue to a north-south leg of the City Limits line; 
thence southerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the south City Limits 
line; thence westerly along said south City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence 
northerly along said north-south City Limits line to the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue; thence 
easterly along the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence 
northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly 
along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said 
north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City limits; thence easterly along said east-west 
City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City limits; thence northerly along said north-south City 
Limits line to the centerline of Viking Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Viking Road to a 
north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-
west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of 
the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits to the centerline of W. 27th Street; 
thence easterly along the centerline of W. 27th Street to the centerline of Hudson Road; thence 
southerly along the centerline of Hudson Road to the centerline of University Avenue; thence 
northeasterly along the centerline of University Avenue to the centerline of College Street; thence 
northerly along the centerline of College Street to the centerline of Seerley Boulevard; thence easterly 
along the centerline of Seerley Boulevard to the centerline of Grove Street; thence southerly along the 
centerline of Grove Street to the centerline of University Avenue; thence easterly along the centerline 
of University Avenue to the centerline of Boulder Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of 
Boulder Drive to the centerline of Idaho Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Idaho Road to 
the centerline of Tucson Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of Tucson Drive to the centerline 
of Utah Drive; thence westerly along the centerline of Utah Drive to the centerline of Dallas Drive; 

14

Item 6.



 2 

thence southerly along the centerline of Dallas Drive to the centerline of Oregon Road; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Oregon Road to the centerline of South Main Street; thence southerly 
along the centerline of South Main Street to the centerline of Greenhill Road; thence easterly along 
the centerline of Greenhill Road to the point of beginning. 
 
Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 shall consist of all Cedar Falls Township, or bounded by a line beginning at 
the intersection of North Butler Road and Westbrook Road and proceeding east along Westbrook 
Road until it intersects the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls, thence proceeding south and 
then west and then south and then east and then south and then east and then south and the west 
and then south and then west and then south and then east and then south along the corporate limits 
of the City of Cedar Falls until it intersects W. Ridgeway Avenue, thence proceeding west along W. 
Ridgeway Avenue to its intersection with University Avenue, thence proceeding west on University 
Avenue until it intersects North Butler Road, thence proceeding north along North Butler Road to the 
point of beginning. 
 
Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 shall consist of the Northwest Corner and North one-half of the Southwest 
Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, 
except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except Parcel ‘A’ of Plat of Survey 
Doc. # 2017-02916, and also the North 550 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the Northeast Corner 
Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 
 

 
PRECINCT 1 OF THE SECOND WARD 
 
Precinct 1 of the Second Ward shall consist of all the area described as follows: 

 
Beginning at the centerlines of Hudson Road and W. 27th Street; thence southerly along the centerline 
of Hudson Road to the intersection of University Avenue; thence southwesterly along the centerline of 
University Avenue to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly along said east-west City 
Limits line  to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits 
line to the centerline of W. 27th Street; thence easterly along the centerline of W. 27th Street to the 
point of beginning. 

 
PRECINCT 2 OF THE SECOND WARD 
 
Precinct 2 of the Second Ward shall consist of all the area described as follows: 

 
Beginning at the centerlines of University Avenue and Hudson Road; thence northeasterly along the 
centerline of University Avenue to the centerline of College Street; thence northerly along the 
centerline of College Street to the centerline of Seerley Boulevard; thence easterly along the 
centerline of Seerley Boulevard to the centerline of Tremont Street; thence southerly along the 
centerline of Tremont Street to the centerline of University Avenue; thence easterly along the 
centerline of University Avenue to the centerline of Main Street; thence southerly along the centerline 
of S. Main Street to where it intersects with the centerline of U.S. Highway 58; thence southwesterly 
and southerly along the centerline of U.S. Highway 58 to the centerline of Greenhill Road; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Greenhill Road to the centerline of Hudson Road; thence southerly 
along the centerline of Hudson Road to an east-west leg of the City Limits or the south City Limits line; 
thence westerly along said south City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence 
northerly along said north-south City Limits line to the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue; thence 
easterly along the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence 
northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly 

15

Item 6.



 3 

along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City limits; thence northerly along said 
north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence easterly along said east-west 
City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City limits; thence northerly along said north-south City 
Limits line to the centerline of Viking Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Viking Road to a 
north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-
west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly along said east-west City Limits line to  the centerline of 
University Avenue; thence northeasterly along the centerline of University Avenue to the point of 
beginning. 
 
Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 precinct 2 shall consist of all Cedar Falls Township, or bounded by a line 
beginning at the intersection of North Butler Road and Westbrook Road and proceeding east along 
Westbrook Road until it intersects the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls, thence proceeding 
south and then west and then south and then east and then south and then east and then south and 
the west and then south and then west and then south and then east and then south along the 
corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls until it intersects W. Ridgeway Avenue, thence proceeding 
west along W. Ridgeway Avenue to its intersection with University Avenue, thence proceeding west 
on University Avenue until it intersects North Butler Road, thence proceeding north along North Butler 
Road to the point of beginning. 
 
Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 precinct 2 shall consist of the Northwest Corner and North one-half of the 
Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, 
Iowa, except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except Parcel ‘A’ of Plat of 
Survey Doc. # 2017-02916, and also the North 550 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the Northeast 
Corner Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, 
Iowa. 
 

 
PRECINCT 3 OF THE SECOND WARD 
 
Precinct 3 of the Second Ward shall consist of all the area described as follows: 
 

Beginning at the centerlines of Greenhill Road and Hudson Road; thence easterly along the centerline 
of Greenhill Road to the centerline of U.S. Highway 58; thence northerly and northeasterly along the 
centerline of U.S. Highway 58 to where it intersects with the centerline of S. Main Street; thence 
northerly along the centerline of S. Main Street to the centerline of University Avenue; thence westerly 
along the centerline of University Avenue to the centerline of Tremont Street; thence northerly along 
the centerline of Tremont Street to the centerline of Seerley Boulevard; thence easterly along the 
centerline of Seerley Boulevard to the centerline of Grove Street; thence southerly along the 
centerline of Grove Street to the centerline of University Avenue; thence easterly along the centerline 
of University Avenue to the centerline of Boulder Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of 
Boulder Drive to the centerline of Idaho Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Idaho Road to 
the centerline of Tucson Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of Tucson Drive to the centerline 
of Utah Drive; thence westerly along the centerline of Utah Drive to the centerline of Dallas Drive; 
thence southerly along the centerline of Dallas Drive to the centerline of Oregon Road; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Oregon Road to the centerline of South Main Street; thence southerly 
along the centerline of South Main Street to the centerline of Greenhill Road; thence easterly along 
the centerline of Greenhill Road to a north-south leg of the City Limits or the east City Limits; thence 
southerly along the said east City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly 
along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence southerly along said 
north-south City Limits line to the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue; thence westerly along the 
centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence southerly along said 

16

Item 6.



 4 

north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits or the south City Limits line; thence 
westerly along said south City Limits line to the centerline of Hudson Road; thence northerly along the 
centerline of Hudson Road to the point of beginning.  
 
 
INTRODUCED:         

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 
 
 

__________________________________ 
      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

17

Item 6.



Greenhill Rd

Ridgeway Ave Ridgeway Ave

Hudson Rd

1st St

1st St

University Ave

Lincoln St

Wa
ver

ly R
d

W Airline Hwy

Center St

Ce
nte

r S
t

Hudson Rd

1st St

Lincoln St

University Ave

Greenhill Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

Lone Tree Rd

De
ere

 Rd

18th St

Dunkerton Rd

S U
nio

n R
d

18th St

Viking Rd

Rainbow Dr

Co
lleg

e S
t

12th St

University Ave

27th St

Lev
ers

ee 
Rd

N U
nio

n R
d

Ma
in 

St

Waterloo Rd

Cedar Heights Dr

S M
ain

 St

12th St

Viking Rd

Ma
in 

St

Cedar Heights Dr

Viking Rd

Viking Rd

Cedar Heights Dr

Orchard Dr

4T75

4D17

4D18

4D19

4V14

Bluegrass C t

Bl ue
g ra

ss
Cir

Wild R ye Way

"!58

"!27

"!27

"!27

"!27

"!58

"!57

"!57

"!58

"!27

"!27

Fra
nk

lin
 St

Grand Blvd

5th St

Blu
ff S

t

Ch
ris

kin
 Rd Brookside Dr

Prairie View Rd

Pro
gre

ss 
Av

e

Ch
an

ce
llo

r D
r

Ann
Ave

Flynn Dr

Laverne Ln

Pa
nth

er 
LnSpringbrook Dr

Ka
ra 

Dr

Athens
Ct

E 14th
Ct

17th
St

Hacienda
Ct

Opal Ln

Bla
ckh

aw
k

Vlg

Carol Ct

RiverRidge Ln

Cherr
ywood

Pl

AliceAve

Horty St

Knoke
Pl

Leg
acy

 Ln

Gra
nd

vie
w

Ct

Lo
ng

vie
w

Ct

Ka
nsa

s S
t

Me
lro

se
Ct

Em
era

ld Rd

He
dg

ew
oo

d
Cir

Illin
ois

 St

Eth
an

 Ct

Cro
ss

Cre
ek 

Dr

High
St

Grant St

Maucker
Cir

Wh
ite

Wa
y

S Forest
Rd

Jade
Rd

Floral Ct

Ind
ian

a S
t

WoodlawnAve
Superior

Way

Orchard
Pl

25th
St

Andover
Ct

Eagle Ridge Rd

Ba
rba

ra
Dr

Sa
ma

nth
a

Cir

Beach St

6th St

Bro
ns

on
 Ct

Es
tat

e
Dr

26th St

Meadow
Park Dr

Ch
ap

ma
n

Ct

Stanwood Dr

Ida St

Ho
we St

Co
tta

ge
Ln

Ga
llo

wa
y

Av
e

Tilton
Dr

Onawa
Dr

Hil
l C

t

Briarwood
Hills Dr

Ke
lly Ct

Ge
ne

vie
ve

Gram
Ct

Gre
ele

y S
t

A S
t

B S
t

Linda Dr

Idaho Rd

Wa
lm

art
Dr

Sunray
Dr

DruryLn

Tun
is

Cir

Hig
hg

ate
 Ln

Market
St

Goldenrod Way

Faithway Dr

Woodland
Dr

Lau
rie

Av
e

Rosemary Dr

Del Matro
Rd

Walters Pond Pl

Mustang Rd

Irv
ing

 St

Fer
n

Av
e

Horizon
Dr

Concord Cir

Cedar St

Blackhawk
Ln

Sta
nle

y S
t

Elm Dr

19th St

Arizona
Rd

Utah
Rd

Wi
nte

rbe
rry

Dr

Ke
nn

ed
y

Av
e

Seerley Blvd

Sh
irle

y S
t

Cyclone Dr

Ore
llan

a
Ave

Wi
llia

ms
on

 Av
e

Hig
hv

iew Ct

Douglas
St

Edgewood St

Elm
wo

od
Av

e

Min
ne

so
ta 

St

Bre
ntw

oo
d D

r

Meadow
View Cir

Ho
lid

ay 
Rd

Theimer
St

Evergreen
Ln Sta

rlit
e

Blv
d

Jes
sic

a L
n

Ch
ad

wic
k R

d

Shawnee
Rd

Sands
Ave

Patterson
Ln

Mathew DrHarriet Ln

Co
ne

flo
we

r
Pk

wy

Jill Dr
Mark Dr
Jodi Dr

Jen
nif

er 
Ln

He
len

 Rd

Green Ave

Shelden Ave

Alden Ave

Am
ity

 Dr

Bir
ds

all 
Dr

Tim
oth

y S
t

Redeker Dr

Sh
elle

y L
n

Meadow
Ln

Loma St

Sc
og

gin St

30th St

Sa
ble

 Ln

Tif
fan

y L
n

Greenhill
Cir

Westgate
Ave

Me
ad

ow
lar

k L
n

WestwoodDr

Linden
Ave

MaCallan
Ln

Chateau
Ct

Glo
ria

 St

Ka
spe

nd
 Pl

S Park Rd

Cooley St

Ma
gn

olia
 Dr

12th St

LeC
lair

 St

29th St

Feather

Ridge Dr

Fieldstone
Blvd

Glen
Oaks Dr

Joy St

Rocklyn St
Westview

St
Rosewood

Dr
Cadam Ct

Maple St

Parkway
Ave

Wo
od

rid
ge

Dr

Sta
te 

St

Be
lle 

Av
e

Bertchwood

Colorado

Lantz Ave

Jay Ln

Qu
esa

da 
Ct

Granite Ridge Rd

As
hla

nd
 Av

e

Hunter Dr

Mis
sou

ri S
t

Po
ss

um
 Rd

Ca
rria

ge
 Ln

Tomahawk
Ln

Minnehaha
Ln

Co
rdu

roy
 Dr

Parsley Dr

Timber Cove Dr

Wembly Rd

Prairie St

McKinley St

An
dre

a D
r

Frontier Rd

Gib
son

 St

Cottonwood Ln

Ba
ker

 Dr
Fo

rre
st 

Rd

Pic
tur

esq
ue

Dr

Ce
ltic

 Ct

Dako
ta S

t

Bre
nto

n D
r

Winters Dr

Whitetail Dr

Fjo
rd 

Dr

Ca
lifo

rni
a S

t

Lindale Rd

Newland Dr

Ste
wa

rt L
n

Hiawatha Rd

Sw
eet

Ba
sil 

Ln

Cottage Row Ln

Ro
os

eve
lt S

t

Lo
ng

vie
w D

r

Drynan
Dr

Iris Dr

Oster Pkwy

Win dingR idge Rd

Lau
rin

da
Dr

Co
lleg

e S
t

Thresher Ct

Wa
rw

ick
 Dr

Ba
rrin

gto
n

Dr

Ad
am

s S
t

Austin Way

Windsor Dr

Jac
lyn

 St

Covey Ct

Ed
die

 St

Quail Hollow Ln

Hic
ko

ry 
Ln

Ca
rey

 Dr
Gla

cie
r D

r

Bonita Blvd

Falcon Ln

Western Ave

Da
ina

 Dr

De
ena

 Dr

Vin
e S

t

An
gie

 Dr

Pa
rkg

ate
 Rd

Ba
rne

tt D
r

Da
ma

scu
s D

r

No
rse

 Dr

Beaver Rd

Cobblestone Ct

Ca
mb

rid
ge

 Av
e

Ste
rlin

g L
n

Fandre Dr

Stratford Ct

Cre
stv

iew
 Dr

Bir
ch

 St

Ryan Dr

Oxford Ln
Coventry Ln
Yorkshire Dr

Joanne St

Ch
err

yw
oo

d D
r

Ga
s L

igh
t D

r

Pe
arl

 St

Ru
sse

ll D
r

Northview
Ln

Div
isio

n S
t

Po
cah

on
tas

 Rd

Maverick Ave

Fra
nc

is S
t

Edw
ard

s A
ve

Pleasant Dr

31st St

Hazelwood Ln

Butternut Ln

Hilton Dr

Continental Dr

Prair ie Rd

Re
dw

oo
d L

n

Hil
lcr

est
 Dr

Elm St

Dr

Orc
ha

rd 
Hil

l D
r

Camden St

Concord St
Saratoga St

Montclair St

Scranton St

Columbia S t

Meado w Ln

Country

Viking Plaza Dr

Co
lum

bin
e D

r

Lloyd Ln

Midway Dr

Timberledge Dr

Acorn Ln

Ma
riu

s D
r

Ap
ple

wo
od

 Ln

De
lta 

Dr

He
art

lan
d H

ills
 Dr

Paddington Dr

28th St

Viking Pl

Au
tum

n L
n

Newman Ave

Co
lum

bia Dr

Fir
esi

de
 Dr

Clair St

Tre
nto

n A
ve

Danish Dr

Hig
hla

nd

Cardinal Dr

Shocker Rd

Oak
lan

d A
ve

9th St
10th St

Richard Rd

He
art

hs
ide

 Dr

Beech Ave

16th St

Ce
dar

 Cr
est

 Dr

S Ridge Dr

Tilb
ury

 Rd

Castle St
Ala

me
da

 St

Huntington Rd

Oh
io 

St

Ell
en

Alvarado Ave

Pa
rris

h S
t

Fo
ur 

Se
aso

ns
 Dr

Berry Hill Rd

Longview St

Mil
len

ium
 Dr

Ca
raw

ay
 Ln

We
dg

ew
oo

d D
r

Cordoba Ave

5th St
Blu

eb
ell 

Rd

Pro
du

cti
on

 Dr

PE
 Ce

nte
r D

r

Quail Ridge Rd

Sunnyside Dr

Mc
Cla

in 
Dr

Val
ley

 Pa
rk 

Dr

Lake St

Madison St

Spruce

Technology Pkwy

Pa
nth

er 
Pk

wy

Westminster Dr

Ridgeway

Ln

Technolo gy P kwy

Mo
rris

on
 Ln

Winter
Ridge Ln

Sp
rin

g
Val

ley
 Ln

Continental
Acc

Sapphire Rd

Me
mo

ria
l

Av
e

Oak
St

Poplar Hollow Ln

Cedar
Hill
Rd

Linden
St

Timberledge
Pl

Willow Ave

Thomas
St

Co
ron

ado
Ct

Jo
rda

n S
t

RiverBluff Dr

Flying
Cloud Ln

Willow
Bend Rd

Sy
mo

ns
 Rd

Lu
ke 

St

Su
ma

c A
ve

Pin
e S

t

Higby Dr

Laurel
Cir

Co
lle

ge
 StHarvest Ln

Boxwood Dr

Wellington Dr

Fai
rvi

ew
 Dr

Ad
dis

on
 Dr

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Ac
e P

l

Four Winds Dr

As
pen

 Dr

Valley High Dr

Balboa Ave

Primrose

Pri
nc

eto
n A

ve

Pheasant Dr

Vir
gil

 St

Vera Way

Wisconsin St

Ne
ola

 St

Venture Way

Waterbury Dr

Bergstrom Blvd

11th St

Riverside Dr

Me
rne

r A
ve

Ea
st 

St

DrDr

Dr

Fle
ur 

Dr

Tita
n T

rl

Ce
ntr

al A
ve

Five Seasons Blvd

Gr
ov

e S
t

Commerce Dr

Wi
llo

w L
n

En
ter

pri
se

 Dr

Div
isio

n S
t

Performance Dr

Savannah Park Rd

De
wit

t R
d

Big
 W

oo
ds

 Rd

Elmridge Dr

Campus St

Athens Dr

Ironwood Dr

S Court D
r

Hyacinth Dr

Pendleton Dr

Sunset Blvd

Nordic Ridge Dr

Capital Way

Quail Run Ln

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Calumett Dr

Holmes Dr

Parker St

Lak
evi

ew
  D

r

Pin Oak Dr

Brandilynn Blvd

Loren Dr

Cy
pre

ss 
Av

e

Da
llas

 Dr

Heritage Rd

Apollo St

Abraham Dr

Kn
oll

 Ri
dg

e D
r

Ea
stp

ark
 Rd

Dr

7th St

Greenhill Dr

Starview Dr

Wynnewood
Dr

19th St

Bo
uld

er 
Dr

Skyview Dr

Lake  Ridge Dr
Vic

tor
y D

r

23rd St

Tuc
so

n D
r

20th St

22nd St

21st St

Independence St

Cla
rk 

     
     

     
    

Dr

Carlton Dr

17th St

E Main St

Melrose Dr

Gre
yh

ou
nd

 Dr

15th St
14th St
13th St

Green Creek Rd

Park Dr
Tim

be
r R

idg
e R

d

Ra
il W

ay

Oa
k

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St
Crescent Dr

S M
ain

 St

No
rdi

c D
r

Briarwood Dr

Oli
ve

 St

Erik Rd

Lone Tree Rd

8th St

Fitkin Rd

2nd St

Iow
a S

t

3rd St

Lilac Ln

Fra
nk

lin
 St

Cottage Row Rd

S U
nio

n R
d

Cla
y S

t

Ro
wn

d S
t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Wa
lnu

t S
t

4th St

Wyth Rd

Ca
tal

pa
 Ln

Sp
ruc

e L
n

Bo
x E

lde
r L

n

Ha
ck

be
rry

 Ln

Fo
x

Vie
w D

r

Parkway Ave | Ct

PrairieCt

Le
xin

gto
n B

lvd

Purple
Clover Dr

Woodland Ave
Glenwood Ave

Ga
rne

t Rd

N Ridge Cir

Zircon Ln

Normandy
Dr

W Sunshine Ln

Sonoma Dr

Sc
hre

ibe
r

St

Richmond St

Lex
ing

ton
 Dr

St

Ro
os

eve
lt S

t

6th St

5th St
4th St Ca

the
rin

e S
t

St

Pa
rk 

Dr

Minnetonka

8th St

Ell
en

 St

20th St

Brookside Dr

22nd St

Melrose Dr

Sta
te 

St

Gro
ve 

St

Au
tum

n L
n

Edgew
ood Dr

Bicentennial
Dr

Valley High Dr

Cardinal

Ct

Midway Dr

Ro
wn

d S
t

Valley High Dr

Carlton Dr

Greenhill DrHills Dr

Nordic Dr

Black Hawk Rd

De
wit

t R
d

Cy
pre

ss 
     

     
  A

ve Lake St

Western Ave

Ford Rd

Cre
sce

nt D
r

18th
St

Grand Blvd

Bri
arw

oo
d D

r

Algonquin Dr
Erik Rd

Cle
arv

iew
 Dr

Maplewood Dr

Greenwood Ave

Madison St

Irving St

Acorn Ln

Ca
mp

us 
St

Ca
mp

us 
St

Pa
nth

er
Ln

E Main StBig
 W

oo
ds 

Rd

Lo
ga

n
St

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

3rd St

Rd
Pra

irie
 Do

ck

Technology Pkwy

Sager Ave

Scenic Dr

Amber
Valley Rd

Arbor
Way Blvd

Autumn
Woods Dr

Oli
ve

 St

Scenic
Dr

Ne
bra

ska
 St

Par
k

Blvd

Pe
arl

 St

Cla
y S

t

St

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Blu
ff S

t

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Ca
me

o S
t

OakAve

Grand Blvd

Oak ParkCir

Lamb eth
Rd

P eridotRd

Winter Ridge Rd

Jam
es

Dr

Logan St

Dr

Ma
ryh

ill
Dr

Alexis Blv d

Ridge

Jua
nita

Ave

L ill
ipu t Ln

Westbrook Rd

Ques adaAve

Monterey Dr
Ingersoll Rd Edg

ew
ood

Dr

Valdez Dr

SOakA ve

Reese Rd

Blythe Blvd

Ironwood Dr

Lark Ln

Mauker

Dr

Woodc restDr

N C
ott

ag
e R

ow
 Rd

River RidgeRd

Sa
int

s
Dr

As
bu

ry 
Ln

Aspen Ct

Fountains Way

Da
llas Dr

Garden Ave

Ver
alt

a D
r

Cle
arv

iew

Hil
lsid

e

Lakesh oreDr

23rd St

Ho
rs eshoe Dr

Hawthorne Dr

Ro
yal

Dr

Thunder Rid ge Blvd

University Dr

Th
ym

eR
d

Cottage Grv

Riders Rd

FastLn

Jakob Cir

Go
lde

n
Ln

Katoski Dr

Tim
be

r C
ov

e D
r

Arb
or s

Dr

Maple St Park Pl
Chestnut St
Pine St

Seaward Dr

Lin nwo o d Dr

Sunnysid e Cir

Shooting Star Way

Prairie Pkwy

Prairie View Rd

Starb
eck

 Cir

Je nnings D r

Willow Oak Dr

Post Oak Dr

Tw
in 

Oa
ks 

Ln

Sa
g e

R d

WildF lower Ln

Pri
de

mo
re 

Dr

Ho
me

wa
y D

r

¡¢20

¡¢218

¡¢218

¡¢20

¡¢218

Cedar River

Cedar RiverAlice Wyth Lake

Fisher Lake George Wyth Lake

Big Wood Lake

Snag Creek

South
Prairie
Lake

North
Prair ie
Lake

Dry
 Ru

n C
ree

k

Dry
 Ru

n C
ree

k (S
)

Dry Run Creek (SW)

Dry Run Creek (Univ)

Dry Run Creek (W)

Shirey Lake

Lake Manatt

Mullens Pond

Beaver Creek

Bullfrog Bayou

Railroad Lake

Green Creek

1st Slough

2nd Slough
3rd Slough

á190

á189

á188

á187

á185

á184

á183

á182

á181

á224 á225 á226

á227

á159

á223

á40 á41

á42 á43

Rd

NordicD r

A shworth Dr

Donal d

D r

Re
d O

ak 
Ln

Ashworth Dr

Andy Ave

Leigh LnEden Way

Lak
esh

ore
 Dr

Arbor Ridge  Rd
Maple Grove Dr

Bark w o od Dr

Arb
ors

 Dr

G reen Cre ek Rd

Whisperi ngPinesCir

Dr

Ca
llu

m C

t

Ver
alt

a

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

Cyber Ln

Piza rro C t

K y l i e Ct

Kael Trl

L ore
n D

r

Norse Dr

Ash wor th Dr

Am el ia Dr

A lgo n quin Dr

W i
ld Rose Ct

Cadillac Dr
Terrace Dr

Crossway Dr

Gre enhillRd

Oregon Rd

Con
va i

r L
n

Devlin
Cir

Latham Pl Richland Dr

Lovejoy Dr

Melendy L nStu
rg i

s D
r

SL
aw

n R
d

Bi centennial Dr

McC
l ai n

Dr

Pleasant Dr

Terr ace Dr

Sun
ny

Ln

S ha
dy

Ln

Park Ci r

Ch
err

y L
n

E R i dg
ew

oo
d D

r

W
Rid

gew
oo

dD
r

Res

erv e Dr

TimberDr

Ma
ndalay Dr

Utility
Pkwy

Summit

Dr

Feather RunTrl

Bl uf f St

Ro
cky

Rd

Blair Ridge Rd

Wi ld Horse Dr

S a
nd a

hlwoo dCir

A utumn Ridge Rd

Bi rd
sal

l P
ark

Dr

G e ra ld in e R d

Pa
rk

Dr

Lemongrass Dr

Savory
Ln

Cohen Ct

Ke ag l e s Xing

Pete rs Pkwy

Tierney
Trl

B ig Woods Creek

Ca stle Hill Creek

Area added to
Ward 2 Pct 2

Pct 3
Pct 1

Pct 2

Pct 2

Pct 3

Pct 2
Pct 1

Pct 3

Pct 3

Pct 2

Pct 2

Pct 1

Pct 1

Pct 1

Pct 3

Ward 5

Ward 2

Ward 4

Ward 3 Ward 1

ICity of Cedar Falls, Iowa

© City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed.

Wards & Precincts

2020 Cedar Falls City
Council
Ward 1:    Mark Miller
Ward 2:    Susan deBuhr
Ward 3:    Daryl Kruse
Ward 4:    Simon Harding
Ward 5:    Frank Darrah*
At Large:  Dave Sires
At Large:  Nick Taiber (Temp)
* Mayor Pro Tem

3/20/2020
K:\Projects\Citywide\Roads11x17.mxd

18

Item 6.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: April 14, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Board of Rental Housing Appeals – Member Reappointment 

 REF: Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §11-301: Board of Rental Housing Appeals 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

nominate the following members of the Board of Rental Housing Appeals for 

reappointment, as their current terms expire on May 1st.  

 

 Mr. Chris Martin (Reappointment) – Term ends 5/1/2024 

 Ms. Cindy Wiles (Reappointment) – Term ends 5/1/2024 

 

2. The board service of these two nominees have been reviewed by Community Development 

staff; both members have had excellent attendance and have actively been contributing to 

the work of the Board; both have agreed to serve for an additional term if approved by the 

City Council. 

 

3. Please contact me if you have any questions about the above nominations. 

 

xc:  City Administrator 

 Director of Community Development 

 Planning and Community Services Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

# 

 

19

Item 8.



CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 
City of Cedar Falls 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
April 14, 2020 
 
Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Mayor Green and City Council Members: 
 
The Civil Service Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa approved of and authorized 
administration of a testing instrument for the position of Administrative Assistant.  Listed below are 
the names of the top ranked candidates with their combined average test scores and applicable 
Veteran’s Preference points.  Tied scores are presented in alphabetical order, if applicable. 

  

    
Rank            Name 

Combined  
Averaged 

Score 
Veteran's 

Preference 

Total Points  
With 

Preference 

1 Jodi Harms 541  541 

2 Julia Donahue 486  486 

3 Jodi Harn 452  452 

4 Amy Fleming 446  446 

5 Beth Wagner 429  429 

6 Katherine Terhune 423  423 

7 Sarah Pavelec 421  421 

8 James Grassley 413  413 

9 Marlene Kampman 410  410 

10 Jamie Mudderman 392  392 

11 Adrianna Stevens 389  389 

12 Katelyn Bouska 386  386 

13 Danielle Carter 381  381 

14 Kari Houle 380  380 

15 Cynthia Meehan 378  378 

16 Elizabeth Garcia 371  371 

17 Kashaunda Anderson 369  369 

18 Shadlee Goodell 361  361 

 
Respectfully Submitted,     Approved by roll call vote on 4-14-20 in 
     the absence of signing at an in-person 
_______________________________________  meeting due to COVID19. 
John Clopton, Commission Chairperson    
 
________________________________________ Absent from 4-14-20 meeting. 
Sue Armbrecht, Commissioner 
        Approved by roll call vote on 4-14-20 in 

       the absence of signing at an in-person 
________________________________________ meeting due to COVID-19.  
Paul Lee, Commissioner 
 
Orig: Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk    
Cc: Civil Service Records 

20

Item 9.



 
 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 
City of Cedar Falls 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
April 14, 2020 
 
 
 
Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Mayor Green and City Council Members: 
 
The Civil Service Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa authorized administration of 
testing instruments for the position of Assistant Public Safety Director/Police Chief.  Listed 
below are the names of the top ranked candidates with their combined weighted averaged 
written and oral interview scores. 
 

  

    
Rank            Name 

Combined  
Weighted Averaged 

Score 

1 Craig Berte 745 

2 Mark Howard 704 

3 Derrick Turner 670 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted, Approved by roll call vote on 4-14-20 in 
    the absence of signing at an in-person 
__________________________________ meeting due to COVID19. 
John Clopton, Commission Chairperson    
 
 
__________________________________ Absent from 4-14-20 meeting. 
Sue Armbrecht, Commissioner 

Approved by roll call vote on 4-14-20 in  
the absence of signing at an in-person 

__________________________________ meeting due to COVID-19.  
Paul Lee, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
 
Orig: Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk 
Cc: Jeff Olson, Director of Public Safety 
 Civil Service Records 

21

Item 10.



22

Item 11.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: April 15, 2020 

 SUBJECT:  2009A Bond Redemption 

 
Over the next couple of months, the City will be working through the process of selling 
General Obligation Bonds for projects listed on the CIP.  As part of that process we 
looked at some of our bonds outstanding to determine if it made sense to refinance or 
redeem some of the outstanding issuances to take advantage of lower interest rates.  
The one issue that made sense was to call in or redeem the 2009A bonds outstanding.  
The current balance outstanding to be called in is $700,000.  The bonds have interest 
rates at 3.55% to 3.80%.  With the current market that we are in where we are only able 
to earn 1% on our investments, it makes financial sense to payoff these bonds.  Per the 
attached notice, we will call these bonds in as of June 1, 2020.    
 
The cash to pay off the bonds will actually come from the debt service fund and will be 
offset by future savings on interest costs.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 

23

Item 12.



 

 

ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2009A 

 

  Resolution Authorizing the Redemption of Outstanding General Obligation Capital Loan 

Notes, Series 2009A, dated December 23, 2009. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 

CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 

 

 

 

24

Item 12.



 

- 1 - 

April 20, 2020 

 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in _Regular__ session, in 

the Council Chambers*, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at _7:00 P.M., on the 

above date.  There were present Mayor _Robert M. Green__, in the chair, and the following 

named Council Members: 

 

 

_Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber______ 

 

 

Absent: _None______________________________________ 

 

 

Vacant: _None______________________________________ 

 

 

* * * * * * * 

 

 

*Due to the State Public Health Emergency Declaration regarding COVID-19, 

this meeting was conducted electronically pursuant to Iowa Code 21.8 and the 

Proclamation of Governor Kim Reynolds dated March 19, 2020. Participation was 

available via the internet or telephonically, as follows: 

 

Internet access: https://zoom.us/j/99824104044 

 

Meeting ID: 998 2410 4044 

 

Telephone access: 

iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,99824104044# or +19292056099,,99824104044#  

Or Telephone:  +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 

+13462487799 or +16699006833 

 

  

25

Item 12.



 

- 2 - 

Council Member _________________ introduced the following Resolution entitled "A 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REDEMPTION OF OUTSTANDING GENERAL 

OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2009A, OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, DATED DECEMBER 23, 2009, AND DIRECTING NOTICE BE 

GIVEN" and moved its adoption.  Council Member _________________ seconded the motion to 

adopt.  The roll was called and the vote was, 

 

 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _____________________ 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REDEMPTION OF 

OUTSTANDING GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN 

NOTES, SERIES 2009A, OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

STATE OF IOWA, DATED DECEMBER 23, 2009, AND 

DIRECTING NOTICE BE GIVEN 

 

WHEREAS, the City did by resolution dated December 14, 2009, authorize the issuance 

of $3,440,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2009A, (the "Notes") dated 

December 23, 2009; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Notes are redeemable in any order of their numbering on June 1, 2017 or 

any date thereafter upon giving notice in the manner provided in the resolution authorizing the 

issuance of the Notes; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable that $700,000 be so redeemed on June 

1, 2020 and notice of redemption be given according to the terms of the resolution authorizing 

issuance of the Notes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 

 

Section 1. That outstanding General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, dated December 23, 

2009, in the principal amount of $700,000, be and the same are hereby redeemed as of June 1, 

2020. 

26

Item 12.



 

- 3 - 

Section 2. The Registrar and Paying Agent, Controller/City Treasurer, is hereby 

authorized and directed to cause notice of such redemption be given not less than thirty (30) days 

prior to the redemption date and to cause notice of redemption to be mailed to the registered 

owners of the Notes by ordinary mail, and to notify DTC. 

Section 3. The Controller/City Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to cause to be 

deposited in a separate fund sum sufficient to pay all principal and interest on the redeemed 

Notes to the date of redemption and to notify the City's dissemination agent to post the Notice of 

Redemption to the MSRB's website (EMMA) in searchable PDF format for the refunded Notes 

in accordance with the Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the Notes. 

Section 4. That the form of such notice be substantially as follows: 

27

Item 12.



 

- 4 - 

NOTICE OF THE CALL OF NOTES FOR REDEMPTION TO THE HOLDERS OF THE 

FOLLOWING DESCRIBED NOTES: 

 

Please take notice that the Notes described below have been called for redemption.  

Owners of the Notes should present their Notes for payment on the redemption date. 

 

Issuer: City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

Original Issue Amount: $3,440,000 

 

Note Issue: General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2009A 

 

Dated Date: December 23, 2009 

 

Redemption Date: June 1, 2020 

 

Redemption Price: Par, plus accrued interest 

 

Notes Called for Redemption 

 

 

CUSIP 

Numbers 

 

Note 

Numbers 

 

Principal 

Amount 

 

Interest 

Rate 

 

Maturity 

Date 

     

150195 X42 11 $165,000 3.55% June 1, 2021 

150195 X59 12 $170,000 3.55% June 1, 2022 

150195 X67 13 $180,000 3.75% June 1, 2023 

150195 X75 14 $185,000 3.80% June 1, 2024 

 

No representation is made as to the accuracy of the CUSIP numbers printed herein or on 

the Notes. 

 

The above Notes should be presented to Controller/City Treasurer, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

This represents a full call of the outstanding obligations.  All interest will cease to accrue on the 

Redemption Date. 

 

 CONTROLLER/CITY TREASURER, Cedar 

Falls, Iowa 

 

 

  

(End of Notice) 

28

Item 12.



 

- 5 - 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of April, 2020. 

  

 

 

  

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

 

 

29

Item 12.



 

  

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 

proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 

Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 

any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 

notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 

the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 

public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 

the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 

advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 

the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 

certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 

their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 

be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 

threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 

right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 

_______________, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

 
01699312-1\10283-109 

30

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

  FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: April 15, 2020 

 SUBJECT:  Sturgis Falls Loan Agreement - Amendment 

 
You may recall that in 2014 the City of Cedar Falls made a loan to Sturgis Falls in the 
amount of $100,000.  In 2016, the City worked with Sturgis to restructure the loan 
payments and the balance of the loan at that time was $75,000.  Currently the loan has 
a balance of $30,000 with the final payments two payments due in 2020 and 2021.   
 
Sturgis Falls has requested that the City extend those loan payments to 2021 and 2022.  
As you can see by the attached letter from Mr. Stoddard, with the uncertainty currently 
with the COVID-19 virus the committee has had difficulty with sponsorships and is even 
unsure at this point if the event can occur this summer.  City staff understands the 
difficult position the committee is in and is therefore willing to work with the committee to 
amend the loan.  Attached is an amended loan document extending the payments, with 
no change in the interest being charged on the loan balance.   
 
  
 
If you have questions, please feel free to contact Director Schrage or myself.  

31

Item 13.



32

Item 13.



RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A SECOND 

AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

AND STURGIS FALLS CELEBRATION, INC. 

       WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has considered entering into a 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement with Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc., an Iowa 

Corporation, pursuant to which an extension of the due dates for the 2020 loan payment and the 

2021 loan payment by Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc. would each be extended for one year; and 

       WHEREAS, because of the COVID-19 pandemic, Iowa Governor Kim Reynolds has issued 

a series of proclamations declaring and continuing a State Public Health Emergency, which 

include, among many other measures, a ban on social, community, and leisure gatherings and 

events of more than 10 people, including, specifically, “parades” and “festivals”; and 

       WHEREAS, due to the pandemic the status of the currently scheduled 2020 Sturgis Falls 

Celebration is in doubt, and even if held, sponsorships for the Celebration and attendance by 

the public is highly unpredictable; and 

       WHEREAS, given these unforeseen and unfortunate circumstances an extension of the 

time for repayment of the loan is reasonable; and 

       WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has reviewed the terms of the 

proposed Second Amendment to Loan Agreement with Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc., finds 

them acceptable, and further deems it in the best interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to 

approve and authorize the extension of repayment of the loan on the terms and conditions set 

forth in said Second Amendment to Loan Agreement. 

       NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that the Second Amendment to Loan Agreement Between the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa and Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc., an Iowa Corporation, be and it is hereby 

approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute said Second 

Amendment to Loan Agreement on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

       PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 20th day of April, 2020. 

                                                                                                            ______________________ 

                                                                                                             Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

33

Item 13.



34

Item 13.



35

Item 13.



36

Item 14.



37

Item 14.



38

Item 14.



39

Item 14.



40

Item 14.



41

Item 14.



42

Item 14.



43

Item 14.



44

Item 14.



45

Item 14.



46

Item 14.



47

Item 14.



48

Item 14.



49

Item 14.



50

Item 14.



51

Item 14.



52

Item 14.



53

Item 14.



54

Item 14.



55

Item 14.



56

Item 14.



57

Item 14.



58

Item 14.



59

Item 14.



60

Item 14.



61

Item 14.



62

Item 14.



63

Item 14.



64

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, PE, Principal Engineer  
 
 DATE: April 15, 2020  
 
 SUBJECT: University Avenue Reconstruction Phase 2 
  McClain Dr to Midway Dr 
  Project No. RC-000-3114 
  Final Out 
 
The University Avenue Reconstruction - Phase 2 project is complete and ready for final 
acceptance. The project from McClain Dr to Midway Dr was a complete reconstruction. 
The project was under contract with Peterson Contractors Inc. of Reinbeck, Iowa. 
Attached you will find the following final documents: 
 

- Final Pay Estimate (releases final retainage) 
- Change Order #10 (reconciliation of quantities) 
- Copy of Performance, Payment & Maintenance Bond 

 
The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and are on file with the City Clerk: 
 

Peterson Contractors Inc. Suppliers: 
Veracity Excavating Inc 
Utility Equipment Co 
Triple D Enterprises LLP 
Leymaster Tile LLC 
Hudson Hardware P&H 
Hayes Bros Inc 
Forterra 
Dave Gardner Construction 
Coleman Moore Company 
Bob Walters Sons Trucking 
Boulder Contracting LLC 
Cedar Valley Trucking LLC 
Arends Excavating LLC 
Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete 

Peterson Contractors Inc. Subcontractors: 
Life Time Fence Co Inc 
Iowa Plains Signing Inc 
Aspro Inc 
CGA Consultants 
K. Cunningham Co Inc 
  -Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete 
  -Logan Contractor Supply 
  -Cedar Falls Construction Co Inc 

Matthias Landscaping Co 
  -Landscape Forms Inc 
  -Gerdes Nursery 
  -Midland Concrete Products 
Meli LLC 
  -Stetson  
  -Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete 

65

Item 15.



BMC Aggregates LC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  -Utility Equipment Co 

Mike Dolan Concrete & Masonry  
  -Midland Concrete Products 
  -Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete 
  -Edwards Cast Stone Co 

KW Electric Inc 
  -Crescent Electric Supply Company 
  -ECHO Group Inc 
  -Iowa Plains Signing Inc 
  -Manatt’s Inc 
  -Terry Durin Co 
  -Traffic Control Corp  
  -Van Meter Co 
  -Xcessories Squared Inc 

Bowers Concrete & Masonry 
  - Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete 
  -Logan Contractors Supply  
  -Stetson Building Products  

Summers Enterprise Inc 
  -Utility Equipment Co Inc 
  -Schimberg 
  -BMC Aggregates LC 

Denver Underground 
Roto-Rooter 

  
 
 
Following is a breakdown of final contract costs for Phases I, II and III: 
Transfer of Jurisdiction from IDOT    $20,000,000.00 
Other State Funding           $550,000.00 
Black Hawk Gaming Grant           $450,000.00 
Cedar Falls Utilities         $2,590,459.16 
Dallas Drive ROW Payment            $19,275.00 
Earned Interest            $243,305.27 
 
A transfer of funds from the following funding sources to the Street Improvement Fund 
has been made.  
Hotel/Motel Tax Receipts           $100,000.00 
Local Sales Tax         $4,274,000.00 
Sewer Revenue Bond Fund          $980,000.00 
Storm Water Fund            $577,000.00 
Tax Increment Financing – Unified Industrial     $3,545,959.29 
Street Construction Fund        $3,430,500.00 
 
Total Project Cost (by phase): 
Phase I         $21,012,583.53 
Phase II         $12,051,955.90 
Phase III           $3,695,959.29  
         $36,760,498.72  

66

Item 15.



 
 
I certify that the public improvement for the 3114 - University Ave Phase 2 
reconstruction project was completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans 
and specifications. 
 

                                         4/15/2020    
                        Jonathan P. Fitch           Date 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

67

Item 15.



68

Item 15.



69

Item 15.



70

Item 15.



71

Item 15.



72

Item 15.



73

Item 15.



74

Item 15.



75

Item 15.



76

Item 15.



77

Item 15.



78

Item 15.



79

Item 15.



80

Item 15.



81

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: April 15, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates, Inc.   
  Supplemental Agreement No. 1 

Union Road Recreation Trail – 12th St to 27th St 
  City Project No. RT-000-3217 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for Union 
Road Recreation Trail Engineering Services. This supplemental agreement includes the 
topographic survey and design of additional sidewalks, ADA ramps and pedestrian 
crossings on Union Road at the intersections of Sonoma Drive and Wild Horse Drive. 
The pedestrian crossings will include Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) 
Pedestrian Crosswalk systems to allow safe travel from the residential neighborhoods 
on the west side of Union Road to the new recreation trail.  
  
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for the Recreation Trail Project on December 16, 2019.  The 
Supplemental Agreement No. 1 will utilize the Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG) Programming Agreement with 80% funding through the grant and 20% Local 
Match funding sources.  
 
The Department of Public Works requests your consideration and approval of this 
Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the additional design 
of the Union Road Recreation Trail project.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

David Wicke, City Engineer 

82

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  

220 Clay Street  

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   

www.cedarfalls.com  
 

Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 
Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 

Water Reclamation Division 
Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 
 

Union Road Recreational Trail – 12th St to 27th St Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number RC-000-3217 
 

 

WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(CLIENT), and Snyder & Associates, Inc. (CONSULTANT), of Cedar Rapids, Iowa, dated 
December 16, 2019 for the professional engineering services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement to include 
Scope of Services and Compensation for additional items required,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement 
as follows:  
 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

A. Pedestrian crossings at two intersections along Union Road: Wild Horse Drive and Sonoma 
Drive.  

1. The CONSULTANT shall complete the following additional services.   
a. Collect topographic survey along the west side of Union Road at each 

respective intersection for sidewalk connection to existing subdivision 
sidewalk routing.  

b. Sidewalk design along both the north and south sides of Wild Horse Drive 
and Sonoma Drive. 

c. Sidewalk ramp (ADA) and pedestrian crossings (cross walks) from north to 
south across the Wild Horse Drive and Sonoma Drive and west to east on 
the southern side of each intersection to cross Union Road. 

d. Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) design for a bid alternate within 
the plans and specifications. There will be two separate RRFB systems 
across Union Road with one located on the southern side of Wild Horse 
Drive and the second being located on the southern side of Sonoma Drive. 
The RRFB’s will be designed for solar power. 

83

Item 16.



e. Plan sheets will be added and/or revised to include the additional design 
scope which will include pertinent notes and details for construction, bid 
estimate reference updates, DOT tables, and any special provisions 
necessary. 

 
 

B. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 

1. The CLIENT may request Additional Services from the CONSULTANT not included 
in the Scope of Services as outlined. Additional Services may include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, additional site visits, attending a preconstruction meeting, 
construction observation, construction survey, assistance with payment requests, 
shop drawing preparation, change orders, substantial completion documentation, 
assistance with calendar day and liquidated damages documentation and final 
project acceptance; expanding the scope of the project or the work to be completed; 
requesting the development of various documents; extending the time to complete 
a project through no fault of the CONSULTANT; or requesting additional work items 
that increase the Engineering Services and corresponding costs. 

 
 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly 

fees and other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total 
compensation is a not to exceed fee of Eleven Thousand Dollars $11,000. The 
compensation for this supplemental agreement is to be integrated into the original 
agreement. The total compensation of the original contract and supplemental agreement 
is not to exceed the fee of Sixty-Seven Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars  $67,250. 

 

 
 
 

III.  ASSIGNABILITY 
 

 
1. The CONSULTANT shall not assign any interest in this AGREEMENT and shall not 

transfer any interest in the same without the prior written consent of the CLIENT. 
Subconsultants designated as part of this AGREEMENT shall be deemed to be 
approved when this AGREEMENT is executed. No subsonsultants are anticipated. 

 

Task Fee

Survey $ 2,800.00

Design (broken down below) $ 5,700.00

Sidewalk Layout and Design ** $ 2,000.00

Sidewalk Ramp Design $ 2,500.00

RRFB Design $ 1,200.00

Plan Preparation $ 2,500.00

Total: $ 11,000.00

Additional Services

** includes any utility or culvert adjustments

84

Item 16.



IV. In all other aspects, the obligations of the CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall remain as 
specified in the Professional Services Agreement dated December 16, 2019.  
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year 
written below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT. 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
Printed Name:  Printed Name:   Lindsay Beaman               
 
 
Title:  Title:        Business Unit Leader                       
 
 
Date:  Date: _____April 2, 2020____________ 

85

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 13, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, AECOM 
   Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement 
   Supplemental Agreement No. 1 
   City Project No. BR-106-3215 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with AECOM Technical Services, 
Inc. that outlines additional scope of services and costs for Right-of-Way Acquisition 
Services.  The additional Right-of-Way Acquisition services will provide additional 
resources related to the placement of the Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement project.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Service Agreement with AECOM 
Technical Services, Inc. for the Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project on 
January 6th, 2020. Funding for this Supplemental Agreement will be provided by the 
General Obligation Bond in the amount of $31,000. This project is included in the City of 
Cedar Falls’ Capital Improvements Program (#89). 
 
The Public Works Department requests your consideration and approval of this 
Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with AECOM for Right-of-Way Acquisition Services.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

86

Item 17.



 AECOM 319-232-6531    tel 
  501 Sycamore Street 319-232-0271    fax 
 Suite 222 
 Waterloo, Iowa  50703 
 www.aecom.com 
 

 
OLIVE STREET BOX CULVERT REPLACEMENT 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
CITY PROJECT NUMBER:  BR-106-3215 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into between City of Cedar Falls, 220 
Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, (Client) and AECOM Technical Services, Inc., 501 Sycamore Street, 
Suite 222, Waterloo, Iowa, (ATS) dated January 6, 2020, for preliminary and final design for the 
reconstruction of the Olive Street box culvert; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and ATS now desire to enter into Supplemental Agreement No. 1 for right-of-
way acquisition services. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as 
follows: 
 
I. Project Description 

 
This project involves removing and replacing the existing cast-in-place two-span concrete 
slab deck bridge with a box culvert on Olive Street between W. 20th Street and W. 21st Street 
and channel stabilization between College Street and Olive Street.  The project will involve 
the development and evaluation of three alternatives, preparation of the preliminary plans 
for the Type, Size and Location (TS&L) Sheet for the recommended box culvert alternative, 
channel stabilization, water main, storm and sanitary sewer, roadway improvements and 
plaza extension.  The three proposed alternatives will be evaluated based on survey 
(provided by the City), hydraulic data and engineering judgment.  Project administration, 
community and stakeholder involvement will be provided.  Final design and construction 
plans will be developed for the recommended box culvert alternative.  Design fees were 
estimated based on the design of a full box culvert extension from College Street to Olive 
Street with plaza extension.   
 

II. Scope of Services 
 
The Scope of Services will encompass and include detailed work, services, materials, 
equipment, personnel and supplies necessary to provide right-of-way acquisition services for 
the project. The Scope of Services is further defined as follows:  
 
Right-of-Way Acquisition Services 
 
The following tasks include property acquisition for the project.  Our subconsultant, 
ProSource Technologies, LLC, will provide these acquisition services for the project.  For the 
purpose of estimating staff hours, one total acquisition with relocation assistance and 
appraisal and three additional properties which include permanent and temporary 
easements, including compensation estimates, were included.  It is estimated there will be 
twelve tenant contacts and four property owner meetings.  Closing services and recording in-
house will be completed by the Client.  
 
Task 1. Property Owner Research/Relocation Planning (ProSource) 
Task 2. Compensation Valuation, Including Title Reports for Easement Acquisition 
Task 3. Initial and Final Review Appraisals, Including Title Reports for Total Acquisition 

(ProSource) 

87

Item 17.



88

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS – Engineering Division 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 15, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement 
  Island Park Improvements Project 
  Snyder & Associates, Inc.  
  Project No. RC-173-3228 
 
Please find attached the Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. 
which outlines the scope of services and costs for the Island Park Improvements Project. 
The enclosed agreement with Snyder & Associates provides for the design, cost opinions, 
and potential phasing of the Island Park Improvement Project. The fees of this agreement 
are based on hourly rates and fixed expenses and shall not to exceed the total amount of 
$9,500.00.  
 
This project is programmed in the CIP (#154) for design in FY 2020 with the construction 
scheduled for FY 2021. The project is currently budgeted at $115,000.00. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department requests your consideration and 
approval of this Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates for the Island 
Park Improvement Project. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works  
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

89

Item 18.



 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

 

 

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 
 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
220 CLAY STREET 
319-268-5161 
FAX 319-268-5197    
 
 

WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION 
501 E. 4TH STREET 
319-273-8633 
FAX 319-268-5566 
 

 

 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 
 

 
  
This Agreement is made and entered by and between Snyder & Associates, Inc., 5005 Bowling Street SW, 
Suite A, Cedar Rapids, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT" and City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay 
Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as "CLIENT.” 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall perform professional Services (the "Services") in connection with CLIENT's 

facilities in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
II.  CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement: 
 
 (a) Appoint one or more individuals who shall be authorized to act on behalf of CONSULTANT 

and with whom CLIENT may consult at all reasonable times, and whose instructions, 
requests, and decisions will be binding upon CONSULTANT as to all matters pertaining to 
this Agreement and the performance of the parties hereunder. 

 
 (b) Use all reasonable efforts to complete the Services within the time period mutually agreed 

upon, except for reasons beyond its control, as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
 (c) Perform the Services in accordance with generally accepted professional engineering 

standards in existence at the time of performance of the Services. If during the two year 
period following the completion of Services, it is shown that there is an error in the Services 
solely as a result of CONSULTANT's failure to meet these standards, CONSULTANT shall 
re-perform such substandard Services as may be necessary to remedy such error at no cost 
to CLIENT. Since CONSULTANT has no control over local conditions, the cost of labor and 
materials, or over competitive bidding and market conditions, CONSULTANT does not 
guarantee the accuracy of any construction cost estimates as compared to contractor's bids 
or the actual cost to the CLIENT. CONSULTANT makes no other warranties either express 
or implied and the parties’ rights, liabilities, responsibilities and remedies with respect to the 
quality of Services, including claims alleging negligence, breach of warranty and breach of 
contract, shall be exclusively those set forth herein. 

 
 
 
 

90

Item 18.



 

 (d) CONSULTANT shall, if requested in writing by CLIENT, for the protection of CLIENT, require 
from all vendors and subcontractors from which CONSULTANT procures equipment, 
materials or services for the project, guarantees with respect to such equipment, materials 
and services. All such guarantees shall be made available to CLIENT to the full extent of the 
terms thereof. CONSULTANT's liability with respect to such equipment, and materials 
obtained from vendors or services from subcontractors, shall be limited to procuring 
guarantees from such vendors or subcontractors and rendering all reasonable assistance to 
CLIENT for the purpose of enforcing the same. 

 
(e) CONSULTANT will be providing estimates of costs to the CLIENT covering an extended 

period of time. CONSULTANT does not have control over any such costs, including, but not 
limited to, costs of labor, material, equipment or services furnished by others or over 
competitive bidding, marketing or negotiating conditions, or construction contractors’ 
methods of determining their prices. Accordingly, it is acknowledged and understood that any 
estimates, projections or opinions of probable project costs provided herein by 
CONSULTANT are estimates only, made on the basis of CONSULTANT’s experience and 
represent CONSULTANT’s reasonable judgment as a qualified professional. CONSULTANT 
does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual project costs will not vary from the opinions 
of probable costs prepared by CONSULTANT, and the CLIENT waives any and all claims 
that it may have against CONSULTANT as a result of any such variance.  

 
III. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CLIENT shall at such times as may be required for the successful and expeditious completion of the 

Services: 
 
 (a) Provide all criteria and information as to CLIENT’s requirements; obtain all necessary 

approvals and permits required from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the 
project; and designate a person with authority to act on CLIENT’s behalf on all matters 
concerning the Services. 

 
 (b) Furnish to CONSULTANT all existing studies, reports and other available data pertinent to 

the Services, and obtain additional reports, data and services as may be required for the 
project. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon all such information, data and the results 
of such other services in performing its Services hereunder. 

 
IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  

The provisions of the document entitled, "Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of 
Cedar Falls," dated December 13, 2011 as revised January 31, 2017 consisting of 11 pages, which 
are attached hereto, marked Exhibit B, are hereby made a part of this Agreement as if set out word 
for word herein. 
  
CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate or certificates of insurance containing all 
coverages, endorsements and other provisions required by the Insurance Requirements set forth 
in Exhibit B. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of Exhibit B and the other terms of 
this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit B shall control. 
 

 CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy or policies that meet the provisions 
set out in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, attached hereto 
and marked Exhibit B. 

 
 
 
 
 

91

Item 18.



 

V. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 
PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
 The provisions of the documents entitled “Standard Terms and Conditions for Contracts Between 

Contractors Who Perform Professional Services and the City of Cedar Falls,” consisting of two 
pages are incorporated into this Agreement by the Client and attached as Exhibit C. 

 
 
 
VI. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 
 Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total compensation is a not 
to exceed a fee of nine-thousand five-hundred dollars ($9,500.00). 
 
CONSULTANT may bill the CLIENT monthly for services completed at the time of billing. CLIENT 
agrees to pay CONSULTANT the full amount of such invoice within thirty (30) days after receipt 
thereof. In the event CLIENT disputes any invoice item, CLIENT shall give CONSULTANT written 
notice of such disputed item within ten (10) days after receipt of invoice and shall pay to 
CONSULTANT the undisputed portion of the invoice according to the provisions hereof. CLIENT 
agrees to abide by any applicable statutory prompt pay provisions currently in effect. 

 
VII. TERMINATION 
 
 CLIENT may, with or without cause, terminate the Services at any time upon fourteen (14) days 

written notice to CONSULTANT. The obligation to provide further Services under this Agreement may 
be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days' written notice in the event of substantial failure 
by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating 
party, providing such defaulting party has not cured such failure, or, in the event of a non-monetary 
default, commenced reasonable actions to cure such failure. In either case, CONSULTANT will be 
paid for all expenses incurred and Services rendered to the date of the termination in accordance 
with compensation terms of Article VI. 

 
VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

(a) Sealed original drawings, specifications, final project specific calculations and other 
instruments of service which CONSULTANT prepares and delivers to CLIENT pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the property of CLIENT when CONSULTANT has been 
compensated for Services rendered. CLIENT shall have the right to use such instruments of 
service solely for the purpose of the construction, operation and maintenance of the Facilities. 
Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed as limiting or depriving 
CONSULTANT of its rights to use its basic knowledge and skills to design or carry out other 
projects or work for itself or others, whether or not such other projects or work are similar to 
the work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not be liable for 
any unauthorized reuse of modification of its work product. 

 
(b) Any files delivered in electronic medium may not work on systems and software different than 

those with which they were originally produced and CONSULTANT makes no warranty as to 
the compatibility of these files with any other system or software. Because of the potential 
degradation of electronic medium over time, in the event of a conflict between the sealed 
original drawings and the electronic files, the sealed drawings will govern. 

 
 
 
 
 

92

Item 18.



 

IX. MEANS AND METHODS 
 

(a) CONSULTANT shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety measures 
and programs including enforcement of Federal and State safety requirements, in connection 
with construction work performed by CLIENT's construction contractors. Nor shall 
CONSULTANT be responsible for the supervision of CLIENT's construction contractors, 
subcontractors or of any of their employees, agents and representatives of such contractors; 
or for inspecting machinery, construction equipment and tools used and employed by 
contractors and subcontractors on CLIENT's construction projects and shall not have the 
right to stop or reject work without the thorough evaluation and approval of the CLIENT. In 
no event shall CONSULTANT be liable for the acts or omissions of CLIENT's construction 
contractors, subcontractors or any persons or entities performing any of the construction 
work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out construction work under contracts with 
CLIENT. 

 
X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with respect to the Services to be performed 

hereunder. Neither CONSULTANT nor its subcontractors, nor the employees of either, shall be 
deemed to be the servants, employees, or agents of CLIENT. 

 
XI. PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
 Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, CONSULTANT shall have no legal responsibility or 

liability for any and all pre-existing contamination. "Pre-existing contamination" is any hazardous or 
toxic substance present at the site or sites concerned which was not brought onto such site or sites 
by CONSULTANT. CLIENT agrees to release CONSULTANT from and against any and all liability 
to the CLIENT which may in any manner arise in any way directly or indirectly caused by such pre-
existing contamination except if such liability arises from CONSULTANT's sole negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

 
 CLIENT shall, at CLIENT’s sole expense and risk, arrange for handling, storage, transportation, 

treatment and delivery for disposal of pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall be solely responsible 
for obtaining a disposal site for such material. CLIENT shall look to the disposal facility and/or 
transporter for any responsibility or liability arising from improper disposal or transportation of such 
waste. CONSULTANT shall not have or exert any control over CLIENT in CLIENT’s obligations or 
responsibilities as a generator in the storage, transportation, treatment or disposal of any pre-existing 
contamination. CLIENT shall complete and execute any governmentally required forms relating to 
regulated activities including, but not limited to generation, storage, handling, treatment, 
transportation, or disposal of pre-existing contamination.  

 
 For CONSULTANT's Services requiring drilling, boring, excavation or soils sampling, CLIENT shall 

approve selection of the contractors to perform such services, all site locations, and provide 
CONSULTANT with all necessary information regarding the presence of underground hazards, 
utilities, structures and conditions at the site.  
 

XII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
 If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, the breach of this Agreement and if the dispute cannot be 

settled through negotiation, then the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation. In the event CONSULTANT or the CLIENT desires to mediate any dispute, that party shall 
notify the other party in writing of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the parties are unable to 
resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, such dispute shall be submitted 
for mediation in accordance with the procedures and rules of the American Arbitration Association (or 
any successor organization) then in effect. The deadline for submitting the dispute to mediation can 

93

Item 18.



 

be changed if the parties mutually agree in writing to extend the time between receipt of notice and 
submission to mediation. The expenses of the mediator shall be shared 50 percent by CONSULTANT 
and 50 percent by the CLIENT. This requirement to seek mediation shall be a condition required 
before filing an action at law or in equity. However, prior to or during the negotiations or the mediation 
either party may initiate litigation that would otherwise be barred by a statute of limitations, and 
CONSULTANT may pursue any property liens or other rights it may have to obtain security for the 
payment of its invoices. 

 
 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and any action at law or other 

judicial proceeding arising from this Agreement shall be instituted in Black Hawk County District Court, 
Waterloo, Iowa. 

 
XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 (a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes 

any oral or written representations, understandings, proposals, or communications 
heretofore entered into by or on account of the parties and may not be changed, modified, or 
amended except in writing signed by the parties hereto. In the event of any conflict between 
this contract document and any of the exhibits hereto, the terms and conditions of Exhibit C 
shall control. In the event of any conflict among the exhibits, Exhibit C shall control. 

 
 (b) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 (c) CONSULTANT may subcontract any portion of the Services to a subcontractor approved by 

CLIENT. In no case shall CLIENT's approval of any subcontract relieve CONSULTANT of 
any of its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
 (d) In the event CLIENT uses a purchase order form to administer this Agreement, the use of 

such form shall be for convenience purposes only, and any typed provision in conflict with 
the terms of this Agreement and all preprinted terms and conditions contained in or on such 
forms shall be deemed stricken and null and void. 

 
 (e) This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than CLIENT and CONSULTANT 

and does not create any third party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 
 

(f) Except as may be explicitly set forth above, nothing contained in this Agreement or its exhibits 
limits the rights and remedies, including remedies related to damages, of either party that are 
available to either party under the law. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
Printed Name:        Robert M. Green              Printed Name:        Lindsay Beaman          
 
 
Title: __Mayor of Cedar Falls  Title:            Business Unit Leader                   
 
 
Date:  Date: April 15, 2020  

94

Item 18.



Consultant: Snyder & Associates, Inc.  Island Park Master Plan 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

A-1 

 

    

Exhibit A 
 

Scope of Services 
Island Park Master Plan 

City Project Number:  
 

The Scope of Services to be performed by the CONSULTANT shall include the services and 
supplies to complete the following tasks: 

Objective: The CLIENT seeks to develop a master plan for Island Park.  

The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

A. The CONSULTANT shall provide Professional Services in the preparation of a park master 
plan for Island Park. 
 

B. The CONSULTANT shall perform the following services in preparation of the master plan. 
 

1. Conduct a meeting with the CLIENT to review park goals and objectives.  Visit the 
site to observe conditions of existing features which includes structures, drives, 
trails, shoreline, docks, wetlands and vegetation. Identify existing features to be 
removed, including structures, pavements, and vegetation. 
 

2. Prepare concept designs for park improvements. Anticipated improvements include 
park design elements, boardwalk, driveways, parking, trails, docks, wetlands and 
vegetation.   

 
3. Conduct a meeting with CLIENT to review concept designs for input and direction. 

 
4. Based upon CLIENT comments, finalize the park design and provide a colored park 

master plan identifying items to be removed and proposed improvements. 
 

5. Prepare an itemized cost opinion for improvements. 
 

6. Conduct a meeting with the CLIENT to review final master plan, cost opinion and 
discuss potential phasing options based upon CLIENT input and resources.   

 
7. Finalize the phasing plan and cost opinion for implementation. 

 
8. Provide the CLIENT with four copies of the final master plan and cost opinion. 

 

COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 

Compensation for this scope of Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly 
fees and other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.  Total compensation 
is a not to exceed fee of $9,500.  

 

 

 

 

95

Item 18.



Snyder & Associates, Inc.  Island Park Master Plan 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

A-2 

 

SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
2020-21 

STANDARD FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 

Billing Classification/Level Billing Rate 

Professional 

Engineer, Landscape Architect, Land Surveyor, GIS, Environmental Scientist 

Project Manager, Planner, Right-of-Way Agent, Graphic Designer 

  Principal II $214.00  /hour 

  Principal I $203.00  /hour 

  Senior $182.00  /hour 

  VIII $169.00  /hour 

  VII $160.00  /hour 

  VI $152.00  /hour 

  V $142.00  /hour 

  IV $132.00  /hour 

  III $120.00  /hour 

  II $109.00  /hour 

  I $96.00  /hour 

Technical 

CADD, Survey, Construction Observation 

  Lead $129.00  /hour 

  Senior $123.00  /hour 

  VIII $115.00  /hour 

  VII $106.00  /hour 

  VI $95.00  /hour 

  V $85.00  /hour 

  IV $78.00  /hour 

  III $66.00  /hour 

  II $58.00  /hour 

  I $50.00  /hour 

Administrative  

  II $66.00  /hour 

  I $54.00  /hour 

Reimbursables 

  Mileage current IRS standard rate 

  Outside Services As Invoiced    

 

96

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

Exhibit B 
 

Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 
 

  Original12/13/11 
Revision 01/31/2017 

 
    INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR  

CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall 
include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly licensed to transact business at the location 
of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 

97

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 
terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s 
expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 
 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 
All deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general 
liability form CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City.  

 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 

attached. 
 

 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees, its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board 
members, employees shall be named as an additional insured on General 
Liability Policies for all classes of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations”  
 
 
 
8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 

98

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

coverage for errors, omissions and other wrongful acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 
work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend (for all non-professional claims), 
indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, 
including any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages 
which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents 
working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not limited to, 
damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death, 
and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way responsible for the 
injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the Contractor, its officers, 
employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor due to 
accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in person or 
property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the Contractor 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent caused by 
the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 

99

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the Contractor or 
anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of subrogation or 
otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or any other 
casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s employees. This 
provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with respect to loss 
or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out of the work 
performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance (except for 
Professional Liability) shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that 
such release shall not adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the 
right of the Contractor to recover thereunder. 
 
 
Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
 
 
  

100

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                            
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 
  

101

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees, its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board 
members, employees, are included as Additional Insureds, including ongoing 
operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and completed operations CG 2037 07 
04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

102

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 
 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
 
  

103

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

 

$1,000,000 

104

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

  

105

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

 

106

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

 

107

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

 

    

Exhibit C 
 

Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 
 

  2/9/12 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN 
CONTRACTORS WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS 
 

 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors 
who perform work or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, 
“Contractor,” as used in this document, includes an engineer, an architect, and any other 
design professional providing professional services to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed 
by an authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services 
to be performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, 
or employees, shall be deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies 
available to it at law or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
incapable of being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no 
provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights 
or obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent 
may be withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature 
extend beyond the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 
 
 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be 
construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws 

108

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

 

of the State of Iowa, excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that 
the exclusive jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk 
County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall not be removed to federal 
court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to submit all 
disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract 
shall be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual 
consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Exhibit B, shall constitute a default 
under this Contract. 
 
 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no 
circumstances be obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other 
party, arising out of such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than 
thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within 
thirty (30) days, the City shall pay interest thereon at the rate provided for by 
Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor 
documents or records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records 
under the Iowa Open Records Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have 
no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the 
Contractor or any other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether 
consequential, indirect, special, or punitive damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be 
limited to any specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by 
the City to the Contractor under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided 
for in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Exhibit B. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any 
other party shall conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, Exhibit 
B. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by 
Iowa law, on the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the 
Contractor or other party under the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved 
by the City Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor 
and City Clerk of the City. 
 
 
 19. Warranties.  Contractor represents and warrants that all services 
furnished to the City under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike 
manner, in accordance with the degree of skill and care that is required by current, good 

109

Item 18.



Island Park Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-011-3233 

 

and sound practices applicable to the Contractor’s industry or profession, and as 
otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other 
party for delays in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from 
such delays, that may result from acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, 
extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.  Each party will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 

110

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: April 15, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Amended Offer to Buy Real Estate: 2nd St. East Lot 

 

Since Council’s approval of an Offer to Buy Real Estate related to the 2nd St. East Lot 
and payment for the improvements made to the parking lot, staff has been working on 
all the documents for closing.  The agreement was with River Place Properties, LC.  
Title work noted that some of the property to be deeded is owned by State Street Mixed 
Use II, LC.  To properly execute the transaction, an amended Offer to Buy Real Estate 
is proposed reflecting both parties: River Place Properties, LC and State Street Mixed 
Use II, LC. 
 
The amendment also clarifies the approach to paying real estate taxes.  A prorating of 
taxes will occur, as further described in the Memorandum of Agreement Regarding Pro-
ration of General Property Taxes.  Prorating taxes is a common approach when 
transferring ownership.  The River Place Development Agreement and all amendments 
thereto remain in effect, which includes Economic Development Grants of 100% of the 
generated tax increment on the development project through July 1, 2027.  Annually, 
the developer submits a request for rebates of all taxes paid.  The taxes paid on the 2nd 
St. East Lot would be eligible for rebate, per the Development Agreement. 
 
A closing date in early May is anticipated and the City’s payment of $737,812.64 would 
be due at closing. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the amended purchase agreement and supporting 
Memorandum of Agreement Regarding Pro-ration of General Property Taxes. 
 
 
CC:   Ron Gaines, PE, City Administrator 
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, CPA, CPFO Director of Finance and Business Operations 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

111

Item 19.



112

Item 19.



113

Item 19.



114

Item 19.



115

Item 19.



116

Item 19.



117

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: April 20, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Temporary Wheat-Pasting Murals in College Hill for UNI Graduation 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District Site Plan for 
multiple temporary mural installations in the College Hill Business District 
(Project #FR20-001) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

UNI Students / Bettina Fabos, Professor -  Interactive Digital Studies Program 

LOCATION: Multiple locations  
 

 

PROPOSAL 
The City has received a request for a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zone façade review to 
allow the installation of temporary wheatpasted murals in three different locations in the College 
Hill Business District, as per the attached proposal. The intent of the project is to publicly 
celebrate UNI graduating seniors, who due to the COVID-19 pandemic will be graduating 
without a ceremony.  As noted in the attached request, a team of UNI students, led by 
Interactive Digital Studies professor Bettina Fabos, have created a series of seven portraits 
retrofitted with graduation caps and gold graduation tassels. These images would be 
wheatpasted on three buildings on College Hill: the north facade of Octopus; the east façade of 
Li’l Bigs; and the south façade of Copyworks.   
 
The murals are made of a biodegradable, non-destructive artform called wheatpasting, which 
adheres large prints of paper to the exterior facades of buildings. These installations do not 
permanently alter the façades of the building and can be removed by power washing.  
 
BACKGROUND 
A similar mural installation was installed in 2019. It was well-received in the community and 
brought interest to the College Hill Business District. There were some minor maintenance 
issues that are noted in the attached proposal that will be remedied with the proposed 
installation of new murals. The remaining existing murals will be removed by power-washing 
and the new ones installed in their place.  
 
ANALYSIS 
Staff notes that while this proposal is for a temporary installation of public art, it is worthy of 

118

Item 20.



Planning & Zoning Commission discussion and recommendation. The locations are all within the 
College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District, which requires review of murals by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council.  
 
The applicable section of the College Hill Overlay Zoning District review standards for the 
commercial district, states in relevant part, “Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork and 
exterior painting of any structure within the commercial district shall be subject to review by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and approval by the City Council for the purpose of 
considering scale, context, coloration, and appropriateness of the proposal in relation to nearby 
facades and also in relation to the prevailing character of the commercial district.”  
 
The proposed installation is similar to the project completed last year. Staff is supportive of this 
temporary installation as a positive effort during this time of crisis. The proposal is an excellent 
example of public art used for community building. The wheatpastings are consistent with the 
intent of the ordinance, given these images are not painted or otherwise permanently affixed to 
building facades and can be removed by power washing them off at any time deemed 
appropriate due to deterioration or for any other reason determined by the property owner. In 
the submitted proposal it states that with the last installation on the Copyworks building there 
was unintended residue that remained after the image was removed due to the age and 
condition of the paint on the building. The applicants note that when the proposed new images 
are removed they will paint the wall of Copyworks west from the windows to restore the façade, 
which will also cover up the stain left on the building when an ATM was previously removed.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed facade plan meets all of the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District 
and Zoning Ordinance requirements and would be a positive community building effort to 
celebrate UNI graduating seniors. Staff recommends approval of the proposal for installation of 
wheat-pasted murals in the College Hill Business District. With Council approval, the installation 
of the murals would occur on May 8th and 9th, just before UNI graduation.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
4/8/2020 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information. 
She stated that the project is led by the interactive digital studies professor, Bettina 
Fabos, and students. Remnants of previous murals will be removed and replaced 
with photos of graduates who will not be able to enjoy a ceremony this year due to 
the pandemic. She showed examples of the locations and photos that will be 
wheatpasted on the building facades. Staff recommends approval of the request. 
 
Bettina Fabos addressed the Commission regarding the project, stating that they 
have support from the building owners and the College Hill Partnership. Kathryn 
Sogard of the College Hill Partnership noted that it is a great way to celebrate the 
seniors who will be missing their graduation ceremony at this difficult time.  
  
Mr. Leeper stated his appreciation for the project. Mr. Holst noted that he feels it is a 
great idea as well. 
 
Ms. Prideaux made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Hartley seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, 
Lynch and Prideaux), and 0 nays. 

 
 

119

Item 20.



COLLEGE HILL WHEAT PASTE PROPOSAL 
#Coronagrad/UNI 2020” 

 
All University of Northern Iowa graduating seniors will be graduating in May without a ceremony due to 
COVID19. This is an emotional time for them as they finish their coursework in homes spread out across 
Iowa, never to be in a group of UNI students again.  
 
We are proposing a way to publicly acknowledge UNI graduating seniors and communicate warmth and 
happiness towards UNI students on College Hill during a time of trauma. A team of UNI students, led by 
Interactive Digital Studies professor Bettina Fabos, have created a series of 7 portraits retrofitted with 
graduation caps and a gold graduation tassel.  
 
We are proposing temporary portrait installations on 3 buildings in downtown College Hill in early May, 
just before graduation (May 8-9), alongside the tagline that would read along the lines of:  

#coronagrad 
UNI 2020 

 
Our Interactive Digital Studies students are schooled in social media campaigns, so we would coordinate 
this activity with social media posts. Our purpose is to bring individuals to the hill to pose with the 
portraits (social distance is very much on our mind).  
 
The proposed locations are:  

1. North face of Octopus.  

 
 

120

Item 20.



 
2. East face of Li’l Bigs 

 
 

3. South face of Copyworks 

 
 
Wheat paste images currently exist on Octopus and Li’l Bigs, and this proposal includes 
removing existing wheat paste images and replacing them with these new portraits. Portraits will 

121

Item 20.



be removed with a power washer when they begin to deteriorate.  
 
Note: Copyworks has dry, old paint on its South side; we installed a wheat paste image last 
October on this spot that left an unintended residue when we removed the wheat paste image; the 
dry paint acted like a sponge that soaked up the paste. Our proposal includes pasting over this 
spot; when the wheat paste portraits come down, we will also paint the wall of Copyworks west 
from the windows. This painting will also cover up the unsightly stain left by the USBank ATM.  
 
Thank you.  
Bettina Fabos, Ph.D.  
bettina.fabos@uni.edu 
 
  

122

Item 20.



April 8, 2020 

Updated Images for the College Hill Wheatpasting – Celebrating 2020 UNI Graduates 

 

 

 

123

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

   

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: April 20, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Dupaco CCU Site Plan: Case # SP20-005 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Site plan approval for construction of a new financial institution. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Brian Ridge (developer); Shive Hattery (engineer) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

126 Brandilynn Boulevard 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant proposes to construct a two story, 9,302 square foot (5,257 square foot 
footprint) Dupaco Community Credit Union, a locally recognized financial institution, on 
126 Brandilynn Boulevard. The proposal includes adjacent site improvements, dumpster 
enclosure and drive through facilities with a canopy overhang.  The proposed layout of 
the building sits on about 1.29 acres of land oriented away from Highway 58 but toward 
adjacent buildings in the same development. This project will include demolition of the 
Doughy Joey’s restaurant which currently sits approximately where the credit union 
would sit.  

 

Proposed site 

for development 

124

Item 21.



BACKGROUND 
This parcel was rezoned from (A-1) Agricultural District to (HWY-1) Highway 
Commercial District on April 13, 1998. The property is also in the (HCG), Highway 
Corridor and Greenbelt Overlay District. The standards of the HCG overlay district apply 
in addition to the standards of the base zone (HWY-1).  
 
This proposal is to redevelop an existing commercial site within the T&L Plaza 
Subdivision. They intend to build on the same location as the Doughy Joey’s restaurant, 
but are not proposing to change any of the site circulation, except for adding a bank 
drive-through. With the Hwy 58 reconstruction project, a small portion of the original site 
along the western edge was acquired by the IDOT for right-of-way, but will not 
significantly affect redevelopment of the site 
 
ANALYSIS 
The HWY-1 District is intended to promote general services commercial uses that serve 
a broader market area (i.e. City-wide or regional customer base). The ordinance 
requires a detailed site plan review prior to approval in order to ensure that the 
development site satisfies a number of basic aesthetic standards. Attention to details 
such as parking, open green space, landscaping, signage, building design and other 
similar factors help to ensure orderly development in the entire area.  
 
The intent of the HCG Highway Corridor and Greenbelt Overlay District is to ensure the 
orderly development of properties located within the district in a manner that is 
appropriate to this major traffic corridor through the city. In general, the overlay includes 
enhanced landscaping, open space and signage standards.. New structures, certain 
modifications to existing structures that require building permits and certain site 
improvements must conform to the overlay. 
 
Following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements for the proposed 
development: 
 

1) Use: A credit union is a permitted use in the HWY-1 District. The overlay district 
does not set forth use restrictions as it is primarily concerned with open space and 
landscaping. Use is allowed. 
 

2) Building Location: The parcel is on the perimeter of the HWY-1 District. A 20-ft. 
setback is required along such perimeter and along any internal streets or 
principal access ways. The overlay district does not detail setback requirements. 
Setback areas must be landscaped. Open space and landscaping is shown on the 
separate landscape plan attached with the documents. In addition, no structure, 
sign or parking areas are allowed in the minimum required setback area. The 
proposed site plan shows 20 ft. setback along the edge of the HWY-1 District and 
along access ways. Worth noting is that the proposed building will sit roughly in 
the same footprint of the existing building (Doughy Joey’s Restaurant) which 
currently conforms to the code. The site plan shows three access points to the 

125

Item 21.



proposed building and parking lot; two from Brandilynn Boulevard and one from 
Andrea Drive. Building setbacks are satisfied. 
 

3) Parking: The parking requirement for the new building is 30 parking stalls (1 stall 
per 300 square feet of gross floor area). The provided site plan shows 52 parking 
stalls, which includes 2 ADA stalls. Parking is provided on the east and south 
areas of the lot. The number of spaces was reduced from 63 to 52. This is an 
appropriate reduction for the change in use while still providing ample parking for 
any existing shared parking arrangements that may be in place with adjacent 
businesses that share the same aisles and drives. The site plan shows minor 
adjustments for additional green space, landscaped islands, and other landscaped 
buffer areas. The parking meets the zoning standards with 9’ x 19’ stalls and 22’ 
wide aisles. 
The amount and dimension of the parking stalls and drives are met. 

 

4) Open Green Space: This property is located within the HCG Highway Corridor 
and Greenbelt Overlay District. This overlay district requires that open green 
space/landscape area be provided at the rate of 25% of the development site. 
Following is a summary from the landscape plan that details how this provision is 
met.   
 
 
 

New Development Site 56,241 SF  

Required Open/Green Space 14,060 SF 25% 
Provided Open/Green Space 15,552 SF 28% 

 
Landscaping is shown throughout the site, both around the building as well as 
within the parking lot, along the streets and required setbacks. 
 
The open green space exceeds the minimum requirement and is well 
distributed. 

 
5) Landscaping: The HCG Highway Corridor and Greenbelt Overlay District requires 

landscaping at the rate of 0.03 points per sq. ft. of total development site area. An 
additional 250 points are required for street tree planting and 320 points are 
required for internal parking lot landscaping.  The below table shows the points 
achieved by the plan and what is required: 

 

Planting Point 
Schedule   

Points achieved in 
current plan Total Needed Requirements met? 

  3050 2257 -1 363 

Overstory trees           
4 inch caliper or 
greater 

100   
  

At least 65% of 
points must be 
achieved from 

over/understory 
trees 

 
The 65% requirement is 

fulfilled by the current plan 

3 inch caliper or 
greater 

90   
  

2 inch caliper or 
greater 

80   
1920 

126

Item 21.



Understory trees       

2 inch caliper or 
greater 

40   
  

1½ inch caliper or 
greater 

30   
  

1 inch caliper or 
greater 

20   
60 

Shrubs       

At least 10% of 
points must be 

achieved from non-
tree plantings 

 
The 10% requirement is 

fulfilled by the current plan 

5 gallon or greater 10     

2 gallon or greater 5   260 

Conifers       

10 foot height or 
greater 

100   
  

8 foot height or greater 90   90 

6 foot height or greater 80   240 

5 foot height or greater 40   480 

4 foot height or greater 30     

3 foot height or greater 20     

 
Trees are required in the vehicular use area at the rate of one overstory tree per 
15 parking spaces. This equates to a requirement of 4 trees. 6 trees are proposed 
within the parking area to meet this requirement. 
 
In addition to parking lot trees, there are trees located along the street frontages, 
with shrubs and additional trees being located around each of the buildings as 
required. The required screening is also fulfilled by their proposed plan. 
Landscaping requirements are met. 
 

 

6) Building Design: There are no architectural 
standards outlined in the HCG Highway Corridor 
and Greenbelt Overlay District. However, the 
HWY-1 zone requires a design review of various 
elements. The intent of the zone is to promote 
and facilitate comprehensively planned 
commercial developments located adjacent to 
major transportation corridors and interchanges. It 
is further the purpose of the zone to encourage 
high standards of building architecture and site 
planning. The elements in the code are noted 
below with a review on how each is addressed. 
Overall, staff finds that the proposed building 
design meets the zoning standards based on 
the following analysis.  

 

Proportion: The relationship between the width 

and height of the front elevations of adjacent buildings shall be considered in the 
construction or alteration of a building; the relationship of width to height of windows and 
doors of adjacent buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building. 

Existing Dupaco CCU in Waterloo (1946 
Schukei Rd) that reflects the design of the 
proposed building. 

127

Item 21.



 
The scale and proportion of the new building will be slightly smaller than the 
restaurant currently sitting on the lot but the height and breadth is very similar. 
Both have two stories and the new building’s orientation will be similarly toward 
the parking lot with the primary façade presenting to the Highway 58 entrance 
from Viking Road. The maximum height of the proposed building is 38 feet 5 
inches. The Zsavooz Bar & Grill to the southeast of the proposed building and the 
other two buildings on the east are all one story tall at about 15 feet. The widths of 
their facades range from 72 to 112 feet and the width of the proposed building is 
101 feet. The heights of the buildings appear to be similar to the height of the first 
floor of the proposed building.   Staff finds that the proposal is consistent with 
neighboring buildings and with the height allowances in the zoning district.  
 
Roof shape, pitch, and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, pitch, and 

direction of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. 

 
The adjacent buildings utilize flat roofs with a parapet around the edge. The new 
building will likewise utilize a flat roof with a parapet around the edge. Worth 
noting is that the roof style of the proposed building more closely matches 
neighboring roof styles than the restaurant that currently sits there. However, the 
roof also has varying elevations that are more visually interesting while being 
relatively compatible with the neighbors.  
 
Pattern: Alternating solids and openings (wall to windows and doors) in the front facade 

and sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. This pattern of 
solids and openings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building.  

 
The new building will feature glass on the façades with varying surfaces of 
concrete masonry and metal panels around the exterior that make the building 
more interesting. Overall, the building materials and patterns meet or exceed the 
city’s standards. 
 
Materials and texture: Materials and texture. The similarity or compatibility of 
existing materials and textures on the exterior walls and roofs of buildings in the 
immediate area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
A building or alteration shall be considered compatible if the materials and texture 
used are appropriate in the context of other buildings in the immediate area. 
 
Glass, architecturally finished concrete masonry, and metal panels are the 
exterior materials proposed for the new building. Most of the materials will provide 
a smooth texture though there is a small amount of split face concrete masonry. In 
total, approximately 30% of the building will be made up of glass, 60% smooth-
faced architectural CMU, and 10% metal panels. 
 

128

Item 21.



The adjacent buildings are constructed almost entirely of glass and concrete 
masonry. Staff finds the proposed building materials will enhance the building and 
will create a distinctive look. 
 
Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and roofs of 
buildings in the area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building. 
 
The new building will primarily include cream and plum colors in the concrete 
masonry materials. As is typical of the branding of Dupaco CCU, the metal 
paneling will be a bright orange color. 
 
Architectural features: Architectural features, including but not limited to, cornices, 
entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, and fanlights, prevailing in the immediate 
area, shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. It is not 
intended that the details of existing buildings be duplicated precisely, but those 
features should be regarded as suggestive of the extent, nature, and scale of 
details that would be appropriate on new buildings or alterations. 
 
The architectural style is very contemporary in nature. Architectural features of the 
new building include a flat roof of varying heights, a modern look, and a touch of 
classical style with buttress columns on the longer sides of the building. The roof 
lines are more varied than the surrounding roofs. The color choice also stands out 
while the materials are generally consistent with the neighbors.  
  

 
 
 

7) Trash Dumpster Site: The dumpster enclosure (pictured to the 
right) is located at the northeast corner of the building. This 
enclosure will be made of plum concrete block and will have two 
doors to operate towards north where cars enter the drive thru. 

129

Item 21.



The enclosure will measure 10’ by 12’. Staff has no major concerns about the 
dumpster facility.  

 
 

8) Lighting: The HWY-1 District regulations do not have specific lighting design 
guidelines. The parking lot lighting that already exists will remain and no significant 
changes have been proposed. Lighting is acceptable.  

 
9) Signage: For the new building, two signs are illustrated on the building; one facing 

southwest and another facing northwest. Both sign directions would be targeting 
traffic on Highway 58 and eastbound traffic on Viking Road. The sign area cannot 
exceed 10% of the wall area to which they are affixed. While the signs appear to 
meet this standard, exact dimensions and measurements will be reviewed when a 
sign permit application is received. 

 
There is also a 10’ x 2’ monument sign proposed west of the drive through which 
faces the traffic entering Highway 58 from Viking Road. The sign will need to be 
supported by a masonry base designed to be consistent with the materials of the 
building. All signage will be reviewed under a separate signage permit. The 
developer has noted from CFU’s comments that the proposed location of the sign is 
within a utility easement. This is done at their own risk. If future work in the 
easement would necessitate removal of the sign, replacement or repair of the sign 
would be at the owner’s expense. 

 
10) Sidewalks: There is a 5-foot-wide PCC sidewalk (pictured to the 

right) proposed in the site plan to allow for patrons to get to the 
entrances of the building from Viking Road. The sidewalk also 
provides a convenient path for the handicapped parking stalls. 
The sidewalks proposed provide good pedestrian circulation and 
meet City standards. 

 
11) Storm Water Management: Storm Water Management: The 

preliminary storm water management plan has been submitted 
by the applicant. The plan indicates utilization of the existing 
underground storage and detention system with added water 
quality (WQv) updates. Water will sheet flow onto a new 
permeable paver section, which is the lowest adjacent paved 
area in the northwest part of the site. Roof drains and other 
impermeable areas will collect and filter through the permeable 
paved areas before entering the existing underground chamber. 
The chamber will capture water from the proposed development 
site and the parking area around the building. This chamber was 
designed in order to release the water collected from impervious surfaces into the 
storm sewer along Brandilynn Boulevard. The Stormwater management plan has 
been reviewed and will be approved by the Engineering Department upon 
submission of final plans. 

130

Item 21.



 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
 

Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) has reviewed the site plan for 126 Brandilynn Blvd.  Water, 
electric, gas, and communications utility services are available in accordance with the 
service policies of CFU.  All utilities are available from Brandilynn Blvd. The developer is 
responsible for abandoning the water service at the water main per the service policies 
of CFU.  The developer is responsible for all utility relocation costs. Any utility 
modifications will be reviewed by CFU personnel as part of the building plan review. 
 
Major technical comments from the City’s Technical Review Committee have been 
addressed. Any minor remaining technical issues will be addressed prior to council 
meeting or at the time of building plan review. 
 
A courtesy notice to surrounding property owners was mailed on March 31, 2020. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department has reviewed this site plan and recommends 
approval, subject to the following conditions: 
  

1. Developer’s plan must conform to all city staff recommendations and technical 
requirements. 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
and Vote 
4/8/2020 
 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sevy provided background information. 
He explained that the proposed site is located where Highway 58 meets Viking 
Road at 126 Brandilynn Boulevard where the Doughy Joey’s restaurant currently 
sits. The proposed building sits outside the existing easements and meets the 
setback requirements of the zone. It also meets landscaping and parking 
requirements. The materials and design of the building are consistent with other 
Dupaco buildings and fits with the neighbors in the development. The proposed 
signage concept is acceptable to staff and appears to meet code requirements. 
Exact specifications will be reviewed through a separate sign permit. The height of 
the monument sign is yet to be determined but the developer intends it to be the 
max height allowed which is 25 feet above the surface of the highway. Staff 
recommends approval if there are no issues or concerns identified by the 
commission. 
 
Chair Holst clarified that this is an introductory item. He inquired whether staff is 
recommending approval at this time, if there are no major concerns. Sevy 
confirmed that staff is recommending approval unless the Commission sees a 
need for further review and discussion. 
 
Chair Holst opened it up for the developer/engineer to give comment. Mr. Ridge 
and Mr. Hatz both expressed their excitement for the project and that they think it 
will make the area better. Mr. Ridge clarified that the building will sit within the 

131

Item 21.



footprint of the restaurant that sits there now but will be a new building. 
 
Chair Holst then turned it over to the commission for discussion. Hartley asked 
what the timeline is for this project. Mr. Ridge said he hopes to close on the 
property in June and begin construction in late summer. It will take about a year. 
Prideaux and Lynch expressed that they have no concerns and the project 
appears consistent with the area. Leeper stated that it will be a great project. 
Chair Holst stated that he had no problem moving this forward without another 
meeting. Mr. Larsen had a question about existing parking arrangements between 
neighbors and whether there would continue to be sufficient parking since the 
proposal was to reduce the number of spaces. Brian Ridge affirmed that there is 
an existing shared parking agreement that will still be in place. Mr. Sevy confirmed 
that staff finds that there will be sufficient parking since the bank will have less 
demand for parking than what the current restaurant has. It was also noted that 
peak times for parking are different for a bank than for restaurants, so should not 
be an issue.  
 
Ms. Adkins made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Prideaux seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Hartley, Holst, 
Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux), and 0 nays. 
 

 
 
 

 
Attachments: Proposed Site Plan 
  Proposed Building Elevations 
  Storm Water Management Exhibit 

132

Item 21.



7

4

2

14

15

10

R

=

1

1

.

0

'

R

=

1

0

.

0

'

R

=

5

.

5

'

R

=

5

.
5

'

R=10.0'

9

6

1

9
6
2

962

9

6

2

962

9

6

2

9

6

2

963

9

6

3

9

6

3

9
6
3

9

6

3

9

6

3

9

6

3

9

6

3

9
6
4

9

6

4

9

6

4

9
6
5

9

6

5

9

6

3

9

6

3

9

6

3

9
6
3

9

6

4

9
6
4

9
6
5

9
6
5

9
6
3

9
6
4

9
6
4

1
6
2
.
8
'

193.3'

1
0
7
.
3
'

30.6'

7
7
.
0
'

160.0'

3
2
.
4
'

13.9'

3

3

.

0

'

2

4

.

0

'

1

3

.

4

'

5

.

0

'

1

3

.

5

'

5

.

0

'

8

6

.

5

'

7

1

.

5

'

1

0

0

.

6

'

1

1

.

0

'

34.4'

3
3
.
6
'

7.1'

5
0
.
3
'

6

.

5

'

6

1

.

1

'

5

.

0

'

1

8

.

0

'

5

.

0

'

2

1

.

1

'

E VIKING ROAD

BRANDILYNN BLVD

H
I
G

H
W

A
Y

 
5

8
/
2

7

A
N

D
R

E
A

 
D

R
I
V

E

EXISTING EASEMENT ARE

 FROM THE FINAL PLAT

T & L PLAZA

A REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLAIN'S CORNER

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

EXIST. BUILDING

EXIST. BUILDING

EXIST. BUILDING

R

2

0

.

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

'

R20.0'

2
1
.
4
'

APPROX. PROJECT

DISTURBANCE LIMITS, TYP.

RELOCATE EXISTING

LIGHT POLE

EXIST. INTAKE (2) CASTING AND

TOP DECK TO BE MODIFIED TO

BE FLUSH WITH PROP. FG

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT

EXIST. TRANSFORMER

PROP. EXTERIOR PYLON SIGN

APPROX. 10'X2'

EXIST. 12" SANITARY MAIN.

PROP. 4" PVC

SAN. SERVICE.

DEMO EXIST. WATER

SERVICE CONNECTION

PROP. WATER

SERVICE

CONNECTION

PROP. 2"

DOMESTIC AND

6" DIP FIRE

SERVICES

EXIST. INTAKE CASTING AND TOP

DECK TO BE MODIFIED TO BE

FLUSH WITH PROP. FG

APPROX. DISTANCE

BETWEEN PROP.

FOUNDATION AND

EXIST. SANITARY MAIN.

EXISTING 30' UTILITY

EASEMENT

EXISTING 50'

UTILITY EASEMENT

EXISTING 36' UTILITY

EASEMENT

EXISTING 36' STORM WATER

DETENTION EASEMENT

EXISTING 10'

UTILITY EASEMENT

MAINTAIN EXIST.

ACCESS

PROP. ACCESS TO

TELLER DRIVE

THROUGH

PROP. PCC PAVEMENT, TYP.

PROP. PCC

SIDEWALK, TYP.

PROP. PERMEABLE

PAVERS, TYP.

EXIST. SAN. SEWER

CONNECTION

PROP. GAS,

FIBER, AND

ELECTRIC

SERVICES

AND METERS

PROPERTY

LINE, TYP.

EXIST. BUILDING

EXIST.

UNDERGROUND

DETENTION

EXIST.

UNDERGROUND

DETENTION

NEIGHBORING

LOT LINE, TYP.

PROP. BUILDING

EDGE,TYP.

PROP. CANOPY

EXIST. 12"

WATER MAIN

PROP. 10' X 12'

DUMPSTER

ENCLOSURE

PROP. FLAG

POLE, TYP.

PROP. 6" CURB

& GUTTER,TYP.

EXIST. CURB &

GUTTER,TYP.

EXIST. STALL

STRIPING,TYP.

PROP. ACCESSIBLE

STALLS AND SIGNS (2)

PROP. NEW BUILDING

FOOTPRINT

FFE ±963.90

PROP. ROOF DRAIN

STORM SEWER, TYP.

PROP. PERMEABLE

PAVER SUBDRAIN, TYP.

PROP. SAN.

CONNECTION

BIKE RACK: RR2H ROLLING

RACK BY DERO, STAINLESS

FINISH, SURFACE MOUNT

DOUBLE-SHREDDED

HARDWOOD MULCH TYPICAL

AT ALL PLANTING BEDS

TRAP ROCK MULCH,

TYPICAL

9

.

0

'

16.9'
20.8'

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT

5.0'

5

.

0

'

EXIST. CURB &

GUTTER, TYP.

EXIST. DRIVE AISLE

1

6

.

0

'

3
5
.
0
'

PROP.

SIDEWALK

25.5'

PROP. 6" CURB

& GUTTER,TYP.

EXISTING TREES ON ADJACENT

PROPERTY TO BE COUNTED

TOWARDS INTERIOR PARKING

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

EXISTING TREES ON ADJACENT

PROPERTY TO BE COUNTED

TOWARDS INTERIOR PARKING

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

RIVER ROCK MULCH

TO MATCH EXISTING,

TYPICAL ALL

PARKING ISLANDS

3

4

.

3

'

VEHICLE

STACKING,

TYP.

EXISTING

CONTOUR,

TYP.

PROP.

CONTOUR,

TYP.

9

6

3

9

6

2

9

6

3

9

6

4

9
6
4

9
6
4

9

6

4

9

6

3

9

6

3

1

.
8

6

%

R

2

5

.

0

'

R

=

6

0

.

0

'

R

5

0

.
0

'

2

7

.

9

'

R
1
0
.
0
'

R
=

4
.
0
'

58

27

20

TREES QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME ROOT SIZE

3 Amelanchier canadensis `Glenn Form` Rainbow Pillar Serviceberry B & B 1.25"Cal

3 Cladrastis kentukea American Yellowwood B & B 2.5"Cal

6 Ginkgo biloba `Shangra La` Shangra La Ginkgo B & B 2.5"Cal

5 Gymnocladus dioica `Espresso` Kentucky Coffeetree B & B 2.5"Cal

10 Ostrya virginiana American Hophornbeam B & B 2"Cal

3 Picea glauca densata Black Hills Spruce B & B 6` HT.

1 Tsuga canadensis `Golden Splendor` Golden Splendor Canadian Hemlock B & B 8` HT

PLANT SCHEDULE DUPACO CEDAR FALLS

SHRUBS QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME ROOT SIZE SPACING

18 Diervilla rivularis `SMNDRSF` TM Kodiak Black Honeysuckle CONT. #2 48" o.c.

12 Juniperus chinensis `Blue Point` Blue Point Juniper CONT. 5` HT 72" o.c.

53 Juniperus virginiana `Blue Mountain` Nordic Blue Juniper CONT. #3 72" o.c.

28 Nepeta x faassenii `Walkers Low` Walkers Low Catmint 1 gal 36" o.c.

PERENNIALS QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME ROOT SIZE SPACING

49 Allium x `Millenium` Millenium Ornamental Chive CONT. #1 18" o.c.

34 Calamagrostis x acutiflora `Karl Foerster` Feather Reed Grass CONT. #1 36" o.c.

93 Sporobolus heterolepis Prairie Dropseed CONT. #1 30" o.c.

6

5

4

3

BA D E

1

FC

G

2

H

BA D E FC

G H

6

5

4

3

1

2

I
o
w

a
 
 
|
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
 
|
 
 
I
n
d
i
a
n
a

2
2
2
 
T

h
i
r
d
 
A

v
e
n
u
e
 
S

E
,
 
S

u
i
t
e
 
3
0
0
 
 
|
 
 
C

e
d
a
r
 
R

a
p
i
d
s
,
 
I
o
w

a
 
5
2
4
0
6

3
1
9
.
3
6
4
.
0
2
2
7
 
 
|
 
 
w

w
w

.
s
h
i
v
e
-
h
a
t
t
e
r
y
.
c
o
m

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y

-
 
N

O
T

 
F

O
R

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

D
R

A
W

N
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

D
A

T
E

:

F
I
E

L
D

 
B

O
O

K
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

C
L
I
E

N
T

 
N

O
:

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

C101

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

E
A

V

C
N

H

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

0
3

/
2

3
/
2

0
2

0

2
1

9
2

6
2

0

-
-
-

-
-
-

D
U

P
A

C
O

 
C

C
U

 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

R
I
D

G
E

 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 
L
L
C

1
2
6
 
B

R
A

N
D

I
L
Y

N
N

 
B

L
V

D
,
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L
L
S

,
 
I
A

 
5
0
6
1
3

P
:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2

1
9

2
6

2
0

\
D

e
l
i
v
e

r
a

b
l
e

s
\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
C

1
0

1
 
S

i
t
e

 
P

l
a

n
.
d

w
g

3
/
2

3
/
2

0
2

0
 
1

1
:
0

2
:
3

8
 
A

M

OWNER OF RECORD

POLAR BEAR INVESTMENTS LLC

APPLICANT INFORMATION

RIDGE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LLC

230 2ND STREET SE, SUITE 214

CEDAR RAPIDS, IA 52401

319-777-2284

RidgeDevCo@GMAIL.COM

TOTAL PARCEL AREA

56,241 SQUARE FT = 1.29 ACRES (100% OF SITE)

TOTAL PROJECT AREA

29,385 SQUARE FT  =  0.67 ACRES (51.9% OF SITE)

EXISTING COVERED AREA

35,082 SQUARE FT  =  0.81 ACRES (62.4% OF SITE)

PROPOSED COVERED AREA

40,688 SQUARE FT  =  0.93 ACRES (72.3% OF SITE)

EXISTING OPEN AREA

21,158 SQUARE FT  =  0.49 ACRES (37.6% OF SITE)

PROPOSED OPEN AREA

15,552 SQUARE FT  =  0.36 ACRES (27.7% OF SITE)

PROPOSED BUILDING AREA

5,257 SQUARE FEET - FIRST FLOOR

4,045 SQUARE FEET - SECOND FLOOR

9,302 SQUARE FEET - TOTAL

FLOOD ZONE

NO FLOODPLAIN PRESENT PER FIRM PANEL 

#19013C0277F.

ADDRESSES

126 BRANDILYNN BLVD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

EXISTING ZONING AND USE

ZONING: HIGHWAY 1, HIGHWAY CORRIDOR 

GREENWAY OVERLAY

USE: COMMERCIAL

PROPOSED ZONING AND USE

ZONING: HIGHWAY 1, HIGHWAY CORRIDOR 

GREENWAY OVERLAY

USE: COMMERCIAL

BUILDING SETBACKS

FRONT: 20'

SIDES: 20'

REAR: 20'

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT TO BE PROVIDED BY

EXISTING UNDERGROUND DETENTION AND 

PROPOSED PERMEABLE PAVER SYSTEMS.

SEE STORMWATER EXHIBIT.

PARKING REQUIREMENTS

ZONING: HIGHWAY 1 (1 STALL PER 300 SQFT OF

GROSS FLOOR AREA)

PARKING SPACES REQUIRED: 30 SPACES

PARKING SPACES PROVIDED: 52 SPACES

HANDICAPPED STALLS REQUIRED: 2 SPACES

HANDICAPPED STALLS PROVIDED: 2 SPACES

(ADDITIONAL ACCESSIBLE STALLS PROVIDED 

OFF-SITE AS REQUIRED FOR EXISTING BUILDING

USE REQUIREMENTS AND CROSS PARKING 

AGREEMENT)

CONTACT PERSON

NICK HATZ

SHIVE-HATTERY INC.

P.O. BOX 1803, 52406-1803

222 THIRD AVE. SE, SUITE 300

CEDAR RAPIDS, IA 52401

PH (319) 364-0227

FAX (319) 364-4251

NHATZ@SHIVE-HATTERY.COM

N.T.S.

VICINITY MAP

PROJECT LOCATION

GENERAL NOTES:

1. EXISTING CONTOURS ARE

SHOWN AT 2' INTERVALS.

2. ALL UTILITIES ARE

APPROXIMATE AND ARE TO

BE CONFIRMED BY

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY.

3. UTILITY LOCATIONS WILL

NEED TO BE REVIEWED AS

CONSTRUCTION PLANS ARE

SUBMITTED.

PROP. PARKING AND DRIVE PAVEMENT

6" PCC ON 6" AGGREGATE

LEGEND

PROP. SIDEWALK PAVEMENT

5" PCC ON COMPACTED SUBGRADE

PROP. PERMEABLE PAVERS

EXISTING PROPOSEDDESCRIPTION

CABLE LINE - OVERHEAD

CABLE LINE - UNDERGROUND

ELECTRIC LINE - OVERHEAD

ELECTRICAL LINE - UNDERGROUND

GAS MAIN

SANITARY SEWER

STEAM

STORM SEWER

OVERHEAD TELEPHONE

FIBER OPTICS

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

WATER MAIN

UTILITIES LEGEND

LEGEND

UTILITIES

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

LIGHT POST

UTILITY POLE

GUY ANCHOR

FIRE HYDRANT

FLARED END SECTION

END UTILITY CAP

VALVE

POST INDICATOR VALVE

CABLE TV PEDESTAL

CLEANOUT

JUNCTION BOX

MANHOLE

DRAINAGE MANHOLE

ELECTRICAL MANHOLE

SANITARY MANHOLE

TELEPHONE MANHOLE

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

VAULT BOX

CURB INTAKE

CIRCLE INTAKE

RECTANGULAR INTAKE

WELL

HAND HOLE

SIGNAL BOX

133

Item 21.



(;7(5,25�(/(9$7,21�+$7&+�/(*(1'

63/,7�)$&(�&21&5(7(�0$6215<�81,76�
&2/25��

60227+�)$&(�&21&5(7(�0$6215<�81,76�
&2/25��

($57+�),//

60227+�)$&(�&21&5(7(�0$6215<�81,76�
&2/25��

63/,7�)$&(�&21&5(7(�0$6215<�81,76�
&2/25��

(;7(5,25�0$7(5,$/6�	�&2/25�6&+('8/(

���60227+�%/2&.��&2/25����

���63/,7�)$&('�%/2&.��&2/25����

���60227+�%/2&.��&2/25����

���63/,7�)$&('�%/2&.��&2/25����

0257$5�

35(),1,6+('�0(7$/�3$1(/6�	�75,0��&2/25�$��

35(),1,6+('�0(7$/�3$1(/��&2/25�%�

35(),1,6+('�0(7$/�3$1(/6�	�75,0��&2/25�&��

0$6215<�&21752/�-2,176�

6($/$17�$7�'2256�	�:,1'2:6�

$/80,180�:,1'2:��6725()5217�	�&857$,1�
:$//�)5$0(6�

*/$66�

67((/�/,17(/6�,1�%/2&.��&2/25����

67((/�/,17(/6�,1�%/2&.��&2/25����

0(&+$1,&$/�*5,//(�,1�7$//�:$//�

0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(�&5($0

0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(�&5($0

0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(�3/80

0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(�3/80

0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(�&5($0

81$�&/$'�.<1$5�����6,/9(5�0(7$//,&

81$�&/$'�.<1$5�����&+$5&2$/�*5$<

0(7$/�'(6,*1�,1&��,1�&2/25�72

0$7&+�'4��'$,5<�48((1��3($5/(6&(17�25$1*(

%$6)�6212/$7,&�6721(

%$6)�6212/$7,&�$12',=('�$/80,180

&/($5�$12',=('�$/80,180�

���,168/$7('�/2:�(�(48$/�72

33*�62/$5%$1�������

3$,17�3��� 6+(5:,1�:,//,$06��6:�����*$55(7�
*5$<

3$,17�3��� 6+(5:,1�:,//,$06��6:�����%$7($8�
%52:1

3$,17�3��� 72�0$7&+�'4��'$,5<�48((1�

3($5/(6&(17�25$1*(

���
�� ��
),567�)/225

���
�� ��
7�2��(175$1&(�6725()5217

���
�� ��
7�2��'5,9(�83�&$123<

���
�� ��
7�2��&857$,1�:$//

���
�� ��
7�2��3$5$3(7

$�

$���

$�

$���

$�

$���

�� � � � �

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

�

��
�

�
�

$/,*1

(�

$���

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

�

��
��
��
�

$�����

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�

��
�

�
�

��
�
�

�
�

��
�

&�

$���

6LP
%�

$���

&�

$���

�� ���� ����� �� ��

&)�

&:�

$�����

�
���
7<3�
����

�
���
7<3�
����

�
���

$/,*1

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����
$�����

$�����

$�����

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��� ��
��� �
���

$�����

���
�� ��
),567�)/225

���
�� ��
7�2��(175$1&(�6725()5217

���
�� ��
7�2��&857$,1�:$//

���
�� ��
7�2��3$5$3(7

'�

$���

$�

$���

$�

$���
. - + * ( & % $

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

')

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

�

��
�

�
�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�
�

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�
�

$�����

&�

$���

(�D

$���

&�

$���

6LP

�
�

��
�

$�����

&:�

�
��� �������
����
���
������

7<3�

�
���
7<3�
����

7
<
3
�

�

��
�

�

�

�

�

%$ ' (

�

)& *

�

3
5
(
/,
0
,1
$
5
<

�
1
2
7
�)
2
5
�

&
2
1
6
7
5
8
&
7
,2
1

,R
Z
D�
�_�
�,O
OLQ
RL
V�
�_�
�,Q
GL
DQ
D�
�

'
5
$
:
1
�

$
3
3
5
2
9
(
'
�

,6
6
8
(
'
�)
2
5
�

'
$
7
(
�

)
,(
/'

�%
2
2
.
�

3
5
2
-(

&
7
�1
2
�

+

�

�

�

�

�

�

3
ULQ
WH
G�
�

��
��
7
KL
UG
�$
YH
QX
H�
6
(
��6

XL
WH
��
��
��_
��&

HG
DU
�5
DS
LG
V�
�,R
Z
D�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��_
��Z

Z
Z
�V
KL
YH
�K
DW
WH
U\
�F
RP

%$ ' ( )& * +
$XWRGHVN�5HYLW�����

'
8
3
$
&
2
�&
&
8
�&
(
'
$
5
�)
$
//
6

5
,'
*
(
�'
(
9
(
/2

3
0
(
1
7
�&
2
0
3
$
1
<
�/
/&

��
��
%
5
$
1
'
,/
<
1
1
�%
/9

'
��
&
(
'
$
5
�)
$
//
6
��
,$
��
��
��

$���

(
;
7
(
5
,2
5

(
/(

9
$
7
,2
1
6

6
,7
(
�3
/$

1

��
��
��
�

7
'
0

$
$

��
��
��
��
��

$5&+,7(&785$/�.(<127(6

$����� 60227+�)$&(�&08�%/2&.��0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(
3/80

$����� 63/,7�)$&(�&08�%/2&.��0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(�3/80
$����� 60227+�)$&(�&08�%/2&.��&2/25��
$����� 63/,7�)$&(�&08�%/2&.��&2/25��
$����� 67$,1/(66�67((/�&$%/(�*8$5'5$,/�6<67(0��6((

6758&7��)25�5$,/�&216758&7,21

$����� 0(7$/�:$//�3$1(/��&2/25�&�
$����� 0(7$/�&23,1*��&2/25�$�
$����� 0(7$/�&23,1*��&2/25�%�
$����� 35(),1,6+('�$&0�:$//�3$1(/�29(5������6+($7+,1*

�&2/25�$�

$����� 35(),1,6+('�$&0�:$//�3$1(/�29(5������6+($7+,1*
�&2/25�%�

$����� %5($.�0(7$/�75,0��&2/25�$�
$����� 522)�+$7&+��&225',1$7(�/2&$7,21�:,7+

0(&+$1,&$/�'8&7�:25.�$1'�(48,30(17

$����� /('�/,*+7�%2;�%<�6,*1$*(�&2175$&725
$����� 6,*1$*(�%<�27+(56��3529,'(�%/2&.,1*�$6

5(48,5('

$����� ,70��2)&,
$����� :$//�+<'5$17��6((�3/80%,1*�'5$:,1*6

������ ��
���$� 1257+�($67�(/(9$7,21
�


������ ��
���$� 6287+��($67�(/(9$7,21
�


134

Item 21.



���
�� ��
),567�)/225

���
�� ��
7�2��'5,9(�83�&$123<

���
�� ��
7�2��&857$,1�:$//

���
�� ��
7�2��3$5$3(7

$�

$���

�(

$���

������

$�����

��
�%

��
�%

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

(�

$���

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

�
�

��
�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

��
���

$�����

'�

$���

(�D

$���

(�

$���

���� ��� � �

�

��
�

&)�

&)�

�

��
�

�
���

������

$�����

������ �
��� �
��� �
��� �
��� �
��� ������ �
���

��

7<3�

�
��� 7<3�
����

7
<
3
�

�

��
�

$����� $�����

$�����
$�����

$�����

���
�� ��
),567�)/225

���
�� ��
7�2��'5,9(�83�&$123<

���
�� ��
7�2��&857$,1�:$//

���
�� ��
7�2��3$5$3(7

'�

$���

$�

$���

$�

$���

.-+*(&%$

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

�

��
�

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

' )

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

%�

$���

(�D

$���

'�

$���

(�D

$���

(�

$���

�
�����
�������

&)�

��
�

&)�

7<3�

�
���
7<3�
����

7
<
3
�

�

��
�

$�����

(;7(5,25�(/(9$7,21�+$7&+�/(*(1'

63/,7�)$&(�&21&5(7(�0$6215<�81,76�
&2/25��

60227+�)$&(�&21&5(7(�0$6215<�81,76�
&2/25��

($57+�),//

60227+�)$&(�&21&5(7(�0$6215<�81,76�
&2/25��

63/,7�)$&(�&21&5(7(�0$6215<�81,76�
&2/25��

(;7(5,25�0$7(5,$/6�	�&2/25�6&+('8/(

���60227+�%/2&.��&2/25����

���63/,7�)$&('�%/2&.��&2/25����

���60227+�%/2&.��&2/25����

���63/,7�)$&('�%/2&.��&2/25����

0257$5�

35(),1,6+('�0(7$/�3$1(/6�	�75,0��&2/25�$��

35(),1,6+('�0(7$/�3$1(/��&2/25�%�

35(),1,6+('�0(7$/�3$1(/6�	�75,0��&2/25�&��

0$6215<�&21752/�-2,176�

6($/$17�$7�'2256�	�:,1'2:6�

$/80,180�:,1'2:��6725()5217�	�&857$,1�
:$//�)5$0(6�

*/$66�

67((/�/,17(/6�,1�%/2&.��&2/25����

67((/�/,17(/6�,1�%/2&.��&2/25����

0(&+$1,&$/�*5,//(�,1�7$//�:$//�

0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(�&5($0

0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(�&5($0

0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(�3/80

0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(�3/80

0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(�&5($0

81$�&/$'�.<1$5�����6,/9(5�0(7$//,&

81$�&/$'�.<1$5�����&+$5&2$/�*5$<

0(7$/�'(6,*1�,1&��,1�&2/25�72

0$7&+�'4��'$,5<�48((1��3($5/(6&(17�25$1*(

%$6)�6212/$7,&�6721(

%$6)�6212/$7,&�$12',=('�$/80,180

&/($5�$12',=('�$/80,180�

���,168/$7('�/2:�(�(48$/�72

33*�62/$5%$1�������

3$,17�3��� 6+(5:,1�:,//,$06��6:�����*$55(7�
*5$<

3$,17�3��� 6+(5:,1�:,//,$06��6:�����%$7($8�
%52:1

3$,17�3��� 72�0$7&+�'4��'$,5<�48((1�

3($5/(6&(17�25$1*(

)�

$���

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

$�����

�

�

�

�

%$ ' (

�

)& *

�

3
5
(
/,
0
,1
$
5
<

�
1
2
7
�)
2
5
�

&
2
1
6
7
5
8
&
7
,2
1

,R
Z
D�
�_�
�,O
OLQ
RL
V�
�_�
�,Q
GL
DQ
D�
�

'
5
$
:
1
�

$
3
3
5
2
9
(
'
�

,6
6
8
(
'
�)
2
5
�

'
$
7
(
�

)
,(
/'

�%
2
2
.
�

3
5
2
-(

&
7
�1
2
�

+

�

�

�

�

�

�

3
ULQ
WH
G�
�

��
��
7
KL
UG
�$
YH
QX
H�
6
(
��6

XL
WH
��
��
��_
��&

HG
DU
�5
DS
LG
V�
�,R
Z
D�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��_
��Z

Z
Z
�V
KL
YH
�K
DW
WH
U\
�F
RP

%$ ' ( )& * +
$XWRGHVN�5HYLW�����

'
8
3
$
&
2
�&
&
8
�&
(
'
$
5
�)
$
//
6

5
,'
*
(
�'
(
9
(
/2

3
0
(
1
7
�&
2
0
3
$
1
<
�/
/&

��
��
%
5
$
1
'
,/
<
1
1
�%
/9

'
��
&
(
'
$
5
�)
$
//
6
��
,$
��
��
��

$���

(
;
7
(
5
,2
5

(
/(

9
$
7
,2
1
6

6
,7
(
�3
/$

1

��
��
��
�

7
'
0

$
$

��
��
��
��
��

������ ��
���$� 6287+�:(67�(/(9$7,21
�


������ ��
���$� 1257+��:(67�(/(9$7,21
�


$5&+,7(&785$/�.(<127(6

$����� 60227+�)$&(�&08�%/2&.��0,'/$1'6
&21&5(7(�3/80

$����� 63/,7�)$&(�&08�%/2&.��0,'/$1'6�&21&5(7(
3/80

$����� 60227+�)$&(�&08�%/2&.��&2/25��
$����� 63/,7�)$&(�&08�%/2&.��&2/25��
$����� 67$,1/(66�67((/�52'�5$,/,1*
$����� 0(7$/�&23,1*��&2/25�$�
$����� 0(7$/�&23,1*��&2/25�%�
$����� 35(),1,6+('�$&0�:$//�3$1(/�29(5�����

6+($7+,1*��&2/25�$�

$����� 35(),1,6+('�$&0�:$//�3$1(/�29(5�����
6+($7+,1*��&2/25�%�

$����� %5($.�0(7$/�75,0��&2/25�$�
$����� 522)�+$7&+��&225',1$7(�/2&$7,21�:,7+

0(&+$1,&$/�'8&7�:25.�$1'�(48,30(17

$����� /('�/,*+7�%2;�%<�6,*1$*(�&2175$&725
$����� 6,*1$*(�%<�27+(56��3529,'(�%/2&.,1*�$6

5(48,5('

$����� ,70��2)&,
$����� 1,*+7�'(326,7���&$6+�6$)(��5(48,5(6

7+528*+�:$//�3(1(75$7,21�&225',1$7(
:,7+�0$18)$&785(5��2)&,

$����� 29(5)/2:�6&833(5�/2&$7(�72�%(����+,*+(5
7+$1�522)�'5$,1

$����� :$//�+<'5$17��6((�3/80%,1*�'5$:,1*6
$����� 75$16)250(5��6((�(/(&75,&$/�'5$:,1*6
$����� 0(7(5��6((�(/(&75,&$/�'5$:,1*6

������ ��
���*� '80367(5�6287+�(/(9$7,21
��


������ ��
���*� '80367(5�:(67�(/(9$7,21
��


135

Item 21.



E VIKING ROAD

BRANDILYNN BLVD

H
I
G

H
W

A
Y

 
5

8
/
2

7

9
6
5

9
6
5

9
6
5

9
6
5

9
6
3

9
6

3

9
6
4

9
6
4

9
6
4

9
6
19

6

1

9

6

2

9

6

3

963

9
6
3

9
6
3

9

6

4

9

6

4

9
6
2

962

9

6

2

9

6

2

9
6
3

9

6

3

9
6
3

9

6

3

9

6

3

9

6

3

9

6

3

9
6
3

9

6

4

9
6

4

9

6

4

9

6

4

PROP.

PERMEABLE

PAVERS

2,311 SF

PROP.

PERMEABLE

PAVERS

SUBDRAIN

EXIST. UNDERGROUND

DETENTION BASIN.

APPROX. STORAGE 4369 CF

EXIST. UNDERGROUND

DETENTION BASIN.

APPROX. STORAGE 2818 CF

6

5

4

3

BA D E

1

FC

G

2

H

BA D E FC

G H

6

5

4

3

1

2

I
o
w

a
 
 
|
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
 
|
 
 
I
n
d
i
a
n
a

2
2
2
 
T

h
i
r
d
 
A

v
e
n
u
e
 
S

E
,
 
S

u
i
t
e
 
3
0
0
 
 
|
 
 
C

e
d
a
r
 
R

a
p
i
d
s
,
 
I
o
w

a
 
5
2
4
0
6

3
1
9
.
3
6
4
.
0
2
2
7
 
 
|
 
 
w

w
w

.
s
h
i
v
e
-
h
a
t
t
e
r
y
.
c
o
m

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y

-
 
N

O
T

 
F

O
R

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

D
R

A
W

N
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

D
A

T
E

:

F
I
E

L
D

 
B

O
O

K
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

C
L
I
E

N
T

 
N

O
:

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

EX. 1

S
T

O
R

M
W

A
T

E
R

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

E
X

H
I
B

I
T

E
A

V

C
N

H

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

0
3

/
2

3
/
2

0
2

0

2
1

9
2

6
2

0

-
-
-

-
-
-

D
U

P
A

C
O

 
C

C
U

 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

R
I
D

G
E

 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 
L
L
C

1
2
6
 
B

R
A

N
D

I
L
Y

N
N

 
B

L
V

D
,
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L
L
S

,
 
I
A

 
5
0
6
1
3

P
:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2

1
9

2
6

2
0

\
D

e
l
i
v
e

r
a

b
l
e

s
\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
E

x
h

i
b

i
t
s
\
S

t
o

r
m

w
a

t
e

r
 
E

x
h

i
b

i
t
.
d

w
g

3
/
2

3
/
2

0
2

0
 
7

:
5

5
:
1

6
 
A

M

CONTACT PERSON

NICK HATZ

SHIVE-HATTERY INC.

P.O. BOX 1803, 52406-1803

222 THIRD AVE. SE, SUITE 300

CEDAR RAPIDS, IA 52401

PH (319) 364-0227

FAX (319) 364-4251

NHATZ@SHIVE-HATTERY.COM

GENERAL NOTES:

1. EXISTING CONTOURS ARE

SHOWN AT 2' INTERVALS.

2. ALL UTILITIES ARE

APPROXIMATE AND ARE TO

BE CONFIRMED BY

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY.

3. UTILITY LOCATIONS WILL

NEED TO BE REVIEWED AS

CONSTRUCTION PLANS ARE

SUBMITTED.

SURFACE WATER FLOW

UNILOCK ECO-OPTILOC PERMEABLE

CONCRETE UNIT PAVERS, STANDARD FINISH,

HERITAGE BROWN, OR APPROVED EQUAL

CLEAN 3/8" ROCK CHIP

AGGREGATE SETTING BED

(ASTM NO.8, IDOT GRAD NO.29)

CLEAN 1" ROCK AGGREGATE

FILTER (ASTM NO.57, IDOT

GRAD NO.3)

2"

CLEAN 3/8" ROCK CHIP

AGGREGATE JOINT FILLER (ASTM

NO.8, 9, or 89), SHALL BE SEK

PERM CHIP OR APPROVED EQUAL

PERFORATED HDPE SUBDRAIN,

NO SLEEVE, SEE UTILITY PLANS

2"

NONWOVEN GEOTEXILE

FABRIC OVER

SUBGRADE AND UP ALL

SIDES OF EXCAVATION

CLEAN 1 1/2" - 3" ROCK

AGGREGATE STORAGE BASE

(ASTM NO.2, IDOT GRAD NO.13)

12"

6"

SCARIFY SUBGRADE BY

SCRAPING WITH

BACKHOE. DO NOT

COMPACT.

1

PERMEABLE PAVERS SECTION - PER SUDAS 7080.101

3

TYPICAL PAVER KEY TRENCH DETAIL

1

1

GEOTECHNICAL FABRIC

NON-WOVEN

8" MIN KEY TRENCH

STORAGE AGGREGATE

PERFORATED HDPE,

NO SLEEVE

2" MIN. CLEARNACE

INVERTS TO BE DETERMINED AS DESIGN

PROGRESSES

4

1

2

"

7

1

2

"

6
"
,
 
T

Y
P

.

6
"

3'' RADIUS

PERMEABLE P
AVERS

FORM

GRADE

ELEV.

24", TYP.

PERFORATED STORM

SEWER OR SUBDRAIN,

SEE DETAIL 3/EX. 1 FOR

SIZE & LOCATIONS.

PLACE NONWOVEN GEOTEXTILE

OVER SUBGRADE AND UP SIDES

OF EXCAVATION.

12"

EXTEND PERMEABLE ROCK

BASE BEHIND CURB SECTION

12", TYP. AT PAVERS

2% TYP.

REJECTING

CURB

SET PAVERS 1/8"-1/4" HIGHER THAN

ADJACENT PAVEMENT PER

MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS

2

6" CURB & GUTTER SECTION WITH PAVERS - PER SUDAS SECTION 7080.101

EXTEND NONWOVEN GEOTEXTILE

BETWEEN PCC PAVEMENT AND

PERMEABLE PAVER BASE COURSES

CLEAN 3/8" ROCK CHIP AGGREGATE

(ASTM NO.8, IDOT GRAD NO.29)

PIPE BEDDING, TYPICAL

END PERMEABLE ROCK BASE

WHERE PAVER SECTION

MEETS ADJACENT PCC DRIVE

PAVEMENT OR FOUNDATION.

REFER TO FUTURE

STRUCTURAL SERIES FOR

WATER PROOFING, TYP.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT NOTE:

THE PROVIDED STORMWATER MANAGEMENT EXHIBIT

MAY BE MODIFIED WITH FURTHER DESIGN

PROGRESSION AND PERMITTING APPROVAL

FEEDBACK FROM THE CITY.

REFER TO ATTACHMENT A FOR CALCULATIONS.

136

Item 21.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: April 14, 2020 

 SUBJECT: FY2020 Budget Amendment 

 
Please find attached the notice for a FY2020 budget amendment.  This budget 
amendment is necessary due to departmental reorganization, timing of various projects 
and participation in various grants.    
 
The Code of Iowa requires that the City have a public hearing and I would request 
that the hearing be set for May 4, 2020. 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
       Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  
  

137

Item 22.



046
Jun-19

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Form 653.C1 AMENDMENT OF FY2019-2020 CITY BUDGET

     The City Council of Cedar Falls in BLACK HAWK County, Iowa

will meet at 

at 7:00 pm on 5/4/2020
(hour) (Date)

 ,for the purpose of amending the current budget of the city for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020
(year)

 by changing estimates of revenue and expenditure appropriations in the following functions for the reasons given.

 Additional detail is available at the city clerk's office showing revenues and expenditures by fund type and by activity.

Total Budget  Total Budget

as certified Current after Current

or last amended Amendment Amendment

Revenues & Other Financing Sources

Taxes Levied on Property 1 21,626,843 21,626,843

Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-Levy Year 2 0 0

   Net Current Property Taxes 3 21,626,843 0 21,626,843

Delinquent Property Taxes 4 0 0

TIF Revenues 5 2,939,590 2,939,590

Other City Taxes 6 6,057,824 6,057,824

Licenses & Permits 7 984,000 984,000

Use of Money and Property 8 949,040 949,040

Intergovernmental 9 12,324,006 744,160 13,068,166

Charges for Services 10 14,050,550 113,550 14,164,100

Special Assessments 11 0 0

Miscellaneous 12 668,857 1,534,105 2,202,962

Other Financing Sources 13 2,892,000 600,000 3,492,000

Transfers In 14 10,605,160 10,605,160

Total Revenues and Other Sources 15 73,097,870 2,991,815 76,089,685

Expenditures & Other Financing Uses

Public Safety 16 12,142,350 746,000 12,888,350

Public Works 17 13,973,620 237,255 14,210,875

Health and Social Services 18 213,440 213,440

Culture and Recreation 19 8,825,290 -1,070 8,824,220

Community and Economic Development 20 2,696,130 383,860 3,079,990

General Government 21 5,679,930 -496,030 5,183,900

Debt Service 22 1,177,640 700,000 1,877,640

Capital Projects 23 14,972,190 3,991,000 18,963,190

    Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 59,680,590 5,561,015 65,241,605

Business Type / Enterprises 25 11,497,630 1,088,635 12,586,265

Total Gov Activities & Business Expenditures 26 71,178,220 6,649,650 77,827,870

 Transfers Out 27 10,605,160 10,605,160

Total Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 81,783,380 6,649,650 88,433,030

Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over

(Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out Fiscal Year 29 -8,685,510 -3,657,835 -12,343,345

Beginning Fund Balance July 1 30 97,450,564 97,450,564

Ending Fund Balance June 30 31 88,765,054 -3,657,835 85,107,219

Explanation of increases or decreases in revenue estimates, appropriations, or available cash:

There will be no increase in tax levies to be paid in the current fiscal year named above related to the proposed 

budget amendment.  Any increase in expenditures set out above will be met from the increased non-property tax 

revenues and cash balances not budgeted or considered in this current budget.

City Clerk/ Finance Officer Name

Cedar Falls, Iowa and will be conducted electronically

Jennifer Rodenbeck

These over expenditures are primarily due to departmental reorganizations, timing of capital projects and participation 

in various grant programs.  Some of the expenditures are covered by additional revenues for licenses and permits, 

intergovernmental, charges for services, miscellaneous, other financing sources and cash reserves.

138

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: April 15, 2020  

SUBJECT: Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning Request  
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

 
Future Land Use Map Amendment from undesignated to Industrial, Low 
Density Residential, and Public & Utilities (Case #LU20-001) 
and 
Rezoning of property from A-1, Agricultural District to R-1, Residence District 
and M-1,P, Planned Light Industrial District (Case #RZ20-003) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

City of Cedar Falls  

LOCATION: 
 

Approximately 224 acres of land located along the south side of West Viking 
Road and the east side of South Union Road 
  

 

 
The City of Cedar Falls is requesting to amend the Future Land Use Map and to rezone 
approximately 224 acres of land located along the south side of West Viking Road and the east 
side of South Union Road. The Future Land Use Map amendment includes designating this 
recently annexed area into the city as Industrial, Low Density Residential, and Public & Utilities. 
This request also includes a zoning change from A-1, Agricultural District to R-1, Residence 
District and M-1, P, Planned Light Industrial District. The land use and rezoning change will 
allow for the continued development and expansion of the city’s industrial park. Staff has 
recommended approval of the land use and rezoning change. The Planning and Zoning 
Commission has considered the request and unanimously recommended approval.  
 
Staff requests that City Council set a public hearing date for May 4, 2020 to formally consider 
the change in the Future Land Use Map and rezoning request. A full staff report and summary 
report of the Planning and Zoning Commission meetings will be provided to City Council prior 
the public hearing. 
 
 
     

139

Item 23.



W Viking
Industrial

Park
Capital Way

Venture Way

Technology Pkwy

Pro duc tio n DrDe
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

S U
nio

n R
d

W Ridgeway Ave

W Viking Rd

S U
nio

n R
d

Future Land Use Map Amendment:
Designate New Property in Cedar Falls
as Low Density Residential, Industrial,
and Public and Utilities

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls
University Ave

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

CenterS t

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ma
in

St

W 12th St

W 1st St

E Viking Rd

W Viking Rd

Waterloo Rd

Un
ion

 R
d

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rse
e R

d

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

Location
Map

Cedar Falls City Council
April 20, 2020

140

Item 23.



Rezoning Request A-1 to R-1:
N 550' of the W 1083' NW NE

Sec. 34 Twp. 89 Rng. 14
12.85 +/- Ac

Rezoning Request A-1 to M-1-P:
NW Sec. 34 Twp. 89 Rng. 14
Except N 1,200' of the W 800'

And
N 1/2 SW Sec. 34 Twp. 89 Rng. 14
Except W 231' S 660' & Parcel A

P.O.S. Doc. #2017-02916
211 +/- Ac

300' Limit
Timber Cove Dr

Venture Way

Technology Pkwy

W Viking Rd

De
vel

op
me

nt 
Dr

Capital Way

S U
nio

n R
d

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Owner's Listing for Rezoning Request
A-1 to M-1-P & A-1 to R-1 I

Date: 2/10/2020

141

Item 23.



 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT TO THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP AND TO 

CHAPTER 26, ZONING, CODE OF ORDINANCES  

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND DIRECTING  

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to amend the Future Land Use Map to designate a recently annexed area of land 

into the City as Industrial, Low Density Residential and Public & Utilities, and to change the 

zoning from A-1 Agricultural to R-1 Residence District and M-1, P, Planned Light Industrial 

District, as described below, and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said change in the land use 

and zoning, and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 

a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposed amendment to the 

Future Land Use Map to designate a recently annexed area of land into the City as Industrial, 

Low Density Residential and Public & Utilities, and to change the zoning from A-1 Agricultural 

to R-1 Residence District and M-1, P, Planned Light Industrial District and to amend Section 26-

118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, by removing and changing from the A-1 Agricultural Zoning District, and 

placed in the R-1 Residence District and M-1, P Planned Light Industrial District, on the 

following described real estate: 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to M-1, P: 

 

The Northwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, except the North 1,200 feet of the West 800 feet thereof, and also the North one-

half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black 

Hawk County, Iowa, except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except 

Parcel ‘A’ of Plat of Survey Doc. # 2017-02916. Area containing 211+/- acres. 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to R-1: 

 

The North 550 feet of the West 1083 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of 

Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. Area 

containing 12.85+/- acres; 

142

Item 23.



And that said public hearing shall be held on the 4th day of May, 2020, at 7:00 o’clock P.M. To 

protect against the spread of COVID-19, said meeting will be conducted via videoconference and 

directions on how to participate in the meeting will be included in the meeting agenda, which 

will be available on the city web site at www.cedarfalls.com. The City Clerk is hereby authorized 

and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier, said notice to be 

published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of March, 2020. 

 

 

______________________________ 

                                                                       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

143

Item 23.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: April 15, 2020 

 SUBJECT:  Loitering Ordinance 
 
Attached to this Memorandum please find proposed changes to Chapter 16 of the Code 

of Ordinances. 

 

The Public Safety Department has requested this change in order to better address 

incidents that have arisen in recent years, particularly on College Hill.  If approved, this 

Ordinance would be another tool that law enforcement could use to address large 

gatherings of people who obstruct or hinder people attempting to pass by or enter 

buildings. 

 

Section 16-39 is the Loitering Ordinance.  Section 16-40 is merely a renumbering of an 

existing Ordinance. 

 

Staff recommends that Council adopt the proposed Ordinance amendment. 

 

Please feel free to contact Public Safety Director Olson or Acting Police Chief Berte if 

you have any questions.  

144

Item 24.



1 
 

 

Preparer: Kevin Rogers, Cedar Falls City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613 (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 16, 

OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY (1) REPEALING 

SECTION 16-39, PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF CHAPTER, AND (2) ADDING A 

NEW SECTION 16-39, LOITERING PROHIBITED, AND ADDING A NEW SECTION 

16-40, PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF CHAPTER. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 16-39, Penalty for Violation of Chapter, of Article I, In General, of 

Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety. 

               Section 2.  Article I, In General, of Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous 

Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended by 

adding new Section 16-39, Loitering Prohibited, and by adding new Section 16-40, Penalty for 

Violation of Chapter, as follows:  

Sec. 16-39. – Loitering Prohibited. 

     (a)  It shall be unlawful for a person to engage in any of the following activities in the city: 

               (1)  Congregate, stand, loaf or loiter upon any public property or public right-of-way so 

as to obstruct, hinder or prevent other persons from passing or attempting or 

desiring to pass from, by or through such location.  This shall include other persons 

passing or attempting or desiring to pass using any means of transportation. 

               (2)  Congregate, stand, loaf or loiter in front of, beside, or near any building or property 

that is open to the public so as to disrupt the normal functions carried on at such 

place, or to obstruct, hinder or prevent persons attempting or desiring to pass along, 

into or out of, such place. 

                           (b)  A violation of this section shall constitute a municipal infraction punishable as provided 

in section 1-9. 

      (c)  Nothing in this section shall be held to prohibit peaceful picketing, public speaking or 

other lawful expression, or activities under a properly issued license or permit, or the ordinary 

conduct of legitimate business. 

 

145

Item 24.



2 
 

Sec. 16-40. – Penalty for violation of chapter. 

     Unless an offense is declared a municipal infraction in this chapter or unless a specific 

penalty is provided for an offense in this chapter, any person who violates any of the provisions 

of this chapter shall be deemed to have committed a simple misdemeanor and shall be subject 

to punishment as provided in section 1-8. 

  

INTRODUCED:    April 20, 2020    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:      
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:      
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:      
 
ADOPTED:         
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

146

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Inspection Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor and Council 

 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA 
  Building Official  

 DATE: April 14, 2020 

SUBJECT: Ordinance Amendments  to Nuisance Code Section 17-247 
 
The City has had a full-time code enforcement employee on staff for a full year now, 
which has led us to find two areas of Nuisance Code Section 17-247 – Failure to 
Destroy Noxious Weeds that need to be revised. 
 
Section 17-247(b) listed Public Works as the department overseeing the nuisance 
ordinance.  The wording of this ordinance has been updated to Community 
Development, Inspection Services Manager, and Code Enforcement Officer to 
represent the Department and Division that the Code Enforcement is currently within. 
 
Section 17-247(d) has been added.  In 2015, changes to nuisance ordinances on 
grass/noxious weeds included reducing the height from 12 to 8 inches.  It was also 
discussed that the City would give one notice, with any subsequent violations being 
immediately addressed by the City and assessed.  Since that time, changes in staff 
and internal discussions on implementation have determined the process needs to be 
better defined.  Being a nuisance issue rather than an immediate safety issue means 
the City must send written notification for each violation, allow the owner time to abate 
the issue, and only then can the City address it.  This means repeat grass/weed 
issues will exceed the 8” limit for 7-10 days every time.  The proposed section (d) 
makes each subsequent violation within a single calendar year a municipal infraction 
per Section 1-9, which we hope to minimize the repeat cases.   
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the proposed 
revisions to section 17-247 of the Code of Ordinances pertaining to Noxious Weed 
Ordinance. 
 
Attached is a red-lined version of the proposed changes.  A clean version of the 
ordinance is also attached. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
  

xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 

147

Item 25.



Sec. 17-247. - Failure to destroy noxious weeds; right to hearing; destruction by city.  

(a)  If the owner or person in the possession or control of any land within the city fails or refuses to cut 
or otherwise destroy the grass, vines, bushes or weeds declared a nuisance as provided in section 
17-246 within seven days after notice in writing has been given to such owner and person in 
possession or control of land within the city, the owner or the person in possession or control of such 
land shall be deemed guilty of a violation of this article and punished accordingly. Such written notice 
to cut or otherwise destroy the vegetation declared a nuisance in this article shall be sent by ordinary 
mail to the owner of record and to the person in possession or control of the land in question. Such 
seven-day period to cut or otherwise destroy shall be deemed to commence on the date of mailing of 
the written notice.  

(b)  Each owner and each person in possession or control of any land within the city may request a 
hearing with the department of Community Development or pPublic works of the city to consider any 
objections and protests to the proposed cutting or otherwise destroying of the vegetation declared in 
this article to be a nuisance. The operations and maintenance division managerInspection Services 
Manager, Code Enforcement Officer or their designee City staff or its agents, acting under the 
direction of the director of public works, shall have full power and authority to enter upon any land 
within the city for the purpose of destroying a nuisance. The operations and maintenance division 
Inspection Services Manager, Code Enforcement Officer or their designee managercity staff or its 
agents shall coordinate the removal of the nuisance with the public workscommunity development 
director if necessary. Such entry may be made without the consent of the landowner or person in 
possession or control of the land.  

(c)  The actual cost and expense of cutting or otherwise destroying the vegetation, together with the 
cost of serving of notice, the cost of special meetings or proceedings, if any, and the cost of 
supervision and administration, shall be recovered by an assessment against the tract of land on 
which the vegetation was growing. 

(d)     Once a nuisance has been abated after notice as provided in this section has been given, each 
subsequent violation of this section  within a single calendar year shall constitute a separate, 
subsequent  offense under section 1-9.  

(Code 2017, § 20-263; Ord. No. 2652, § 1, 4-28-2008; Ord. No. 2883, § 2, 9-19-2016; Ord. No. 

2907, 7-10-2017; Ord. No. 2941, § 5, 6-3-2019)  

148

Item 25.



ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 17-247, FAILURE TO DESTROY 

NOXIOUS WEEDS; RIGHT TO HEARING; DESTRUCTION BY CITY, OF 

ARTICLE VI, TREES AND SHRUBS, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND 

RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  Section 17-247, Failure to destroy noxious weeds; right to hearing; 
destruction by city, of Article VI, Trees and Shrubs, of Chapter 17, Parks and 
Recreation, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 17-247, Failure to 
destroy noxious weeds; right to hearing; destruction by city, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 
follows: 
 
Sec. 17-247. - Failure to destroy noxious weeds; right to hearing; destruction by 

city.  

(a)  If the owner or person in the possession or control of any land within the city fails or 
refuses to cut or otherwise destroy the grass, vines, bushes or weeds declared a 
nuisance as provided in section 17-246 within seven days after notice in writing has 
been given to such owner and person in possession or control of land within the 
city, the owner or the person in possession or control of such land shall be deemed 
guilty of a violation of this article and punished accordingly. Such written notice to 
cut or otherwise destroy the vegetation declared a nuisance in this article shall be 
sent by ordinary mail to the owner of record and to the person in possession or 
control of the land in question. Such seven-day period to cut or otherwise destroy 
shall be deemed to commence on the date of mailing of the written notice.  

(b)  Each owner and each person in possession or control of any land within the city 
may request a hearing with the department of Community Development of the city 
to consider any objections and protests to the proposed cutting or otherwise 
destroying of the vegetation declared in this article to be a nuisance. The Inspection 
Services Manager, Code Enforcement Officer or their designee, shall have full 
power and authority to enter upon any land within the city for the purpose of 
destroying a nuisance. The Inspection Services Manager, Code Enforcement 
Officer or their designee shall coordinate the removal of the nuisance with the 
community development director if necessary. Such entry may be made without the 
consent of the landowner or person in possession or control of the land.  

(c)  The actual cost and expense of cutting or otherwise destroying the vegetation, 
together with the cost of serving of notice, the cost of special meetings or 
proceedings, if any, and the cost of supervision and administration, shall be 
recovered by an assessment against the tract of land on which the vegetation was 
growing. 

149

Item 25.



(d)  Once a nuisance has been abated after notice as provided in this section has been 
given, each subsequent violation of this section within a single calendar year shall 
constitute a separate, subsequent offense under section 1-9. 

 

 
INTRODUCED:    April 20, 2020    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:      
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:      
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:      
 
ADOPTED:         
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

150

Item 25.



151

Item 26.



152

Item 26.



153

Item 26.



154

Item 26.



155

Item 26.



156

Item 26.



157

Item 26.



158

Item 26.



159

Item 26.



160

Item 26.



161

Item 26.



162

Item 26.



163

Item 26.



164

Item 26.



165

Item 26.



166

Item 26.



167

Item 26.



168

Item 26.



169

Item 26.



170

Item 26.



171

Item 26.



172

Item 26.



173

Item 26.



174

Item 26.



175

Item 26.



176

Item 26.



177

Item 26.



178

Item 26.



179

Item 26.



180

Item 26.



181

Item 26.



182

Item 26.



183

Item 26.



184

Item 26.



185

Item 26.



186

Item 26.



187

Item 26.



188

Item 26.



189

Item 26.



190

Item 26.



191

Item 26.



192

Item 26.



193

Item 26.



194

Item 26.



195

Item 26.



196

Item 26.



197

Item 26.



198

Item 26.


	Top
	1. Regular Meeting of April 6, 2020.
	200406MINUTES

	2. PH-Continuation-Easement Vacation
	2191_001

	3. Res-Easement Vacation
	4. PH-Rec Center Locker Rooms
	1-memo notice of public hearing locker rooms  4 20 20

	5. Res-Rec Center Locker Rooms
	6. PH-Amending Boundaries
	1_Memo to Council to Amend Ward and Precinct Boundary 04-20-20
	Ord-Amend Wards Precincts
	3_WardPctUpdatedMap

	7. Ord-Amend Boundaries
	8. BORHA Appointments
	2020-04-15_BORHA_Reappointments

	9. Administrative Assistant Certified List
	AdminAsst-CertList4-20

	10. Assistant Public Safety Director/Police Chief Certified List
	AsstPSDir-PoliceChief CertList4-2020

	11. Liquor/Beer 4/20/20
	Liquor-Beer

	12. Bond Redemption
	1-bond call 2009A council.mem
	Res-Bond Redemption

	13. Sturgis Falls Loan Amendment
	1-sturgis loan amendment 2020.mem
	2-City note extension
	3-RESOLUTION--STURGIS
	4-loan amendment

	14. 2020 Pavement Marking Services
	2020 Pavement marking contract cc packet

	15. University Ave Phase 2 Completion
	1. University Ave Ph 2 Final Out Memo
	2. Final Pay Estimate #41
	3. Change Order #10
	5.PCI Performance, Payment & Maintenance Bond

	16. Union Road Recreation Trail
	1. Memo_jpf
	2. PSA_2020-04-02_SuppAgr1_UnionTrail

	17. Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project
	1. Memo - SA1 Olive Box
	2. SA1 CF Olive Street Acquisition Services

	18. Island Park Improvements
	1. Professional Services Agreement Memo-Island Park
	2. Island Park Improvements PSA - Snyder
	3. Attachment A - Scope_of_Services
	4. Attachment B - Insurance Requirements
	5. Attachment C - Standard Terms Conditions

	19. Amendment-Purchase Agreement-River Place Properties, LC and State Street Mixed Use II, LC or 2nd St. East Lot
	1. Council memo-revised agreement May 2020
	2. Amendment to Purchase Agreement-Mark signed 4-16-20
	3. Pro-rated Taxes-Mark signed 4-16-20

	20. CHN-Site plan-Wheatpasting Murals
	1_CC Staff report temporary murals UNI Grads
	2 - COLLEGE HILL WHEAT PASTE PROPOSAL (3)
	3- Proposal - Updated images

	21. Res-Dupaco CCU Site Plan
	1_staff report to Council on 04-20-20
	2_Site Plan
	3_Building Elevations
	4_EX.1 Stormwater Managment Exhibit

	22. Set PH-Budget Amendments FY2020
	Budget Amend #1 Set Pub Hear Memo
	PH Ntc-FY20 Budget Amendments

	23. Rezoning from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential and M-1, P.
	1_CC Memo Setting Public Hearing - Ind Park Rezoning and FLUM Amendment
	2_Land Use Location Map
	3_Rezoning2020 plat map
	4_CC Resolution Setting Public Hearing rezoning and land use - Ind Park

	24. Ord-Loitering
	1-Memo to Mayor-Loitering
	2-Ord-Loitering

	25. Ord-Noxious Weeds
	1  Failure to destory noxious weeds memo 4 20 20
	2-Ordinance Changes-Redline
	3-Ord-Noxious Weeds

	26. Allow Bills and Payroll of 4/20/20
	1 Daily Invoices 042020
	2 Council Invoices 042020

	Bottom

